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If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities
Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective
registration statement for the same offering. o

If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(c) under the Securities Act, check the
following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement
for the same offering. o

If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(d) under the Securities Act, check the
following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement
for the same offering. o

Proposed Maximum Proposed Maximum
Title of Each Class of Amount to be Offering Price Per  Aggregate Offering Amount of
Securities to be Registered Registered Unit Price Registration Fee(1)

Class A Common Stock, par
value $0.01 per share(2) 10,416,667 shares $25.00 $260,416,675(3) $27,864.58

Class A Common Stock, par
value $0.01 per share(4) 49,479,167 shares(5) $25.00 $1,236,979,175(3) $132,356.77

(1) Previously paid.

(2) Shares to be sold by the registrant.

(3) Estimated solely for the purpose of calculating the registration fee pursuant to Rule 457(a) of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended.

(4) Shares to be sold by the selling stockholders.

(5) Includes 7,812,500 shares that the underwriters have the option to purchase solely to cover over-allotments, if any.

The Registrant hereby amends this Registration Statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to
delay its effective date until the Registrant shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this
Registration Statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act of
1933 or until this Registration Statement shall become effective on such date as the Commission, acting
pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine.
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The information in this prospectus is not complete and may be changed. We may not sell these securities
until the registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This
prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities and it is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in
any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted.

SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED NOVEMBER 16, 2006
PROSPECTUS
52,083,334 Shares
Spirit AeroSystems Holdings, Inc.
Class A Common Stock

We are selling 10,416,667 shares of class A common stock and the selling stockholders are selling
41,666,667 shares of class A common stock. We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of the shares by the
selling stockholders.

The underwriters have an option to purchase a maximum of 7,812,500 additional shares of class A common stock
from the selling stockholders to cover over-allotments of shares. The underwriters can exercise this right at any time
within 30 days from the date of this prospectus.

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for our common stock. The initial public offering price of
the common stock is expected to be between $23.00 and $25.00 per share. Our class A common stock has been
approved for listing on The New York Stock Exchange under the symbol SPR, subject to official notice of issuance.

Investing in our class A common stock involves risks. See Risk Factors on page 10.

Proceeds
o . . Proceeds
Underwriting to Spirit to
Price to Discounts AeroSystems Selling
and
Public Commissions Hoiilllcngs, Stockholders

Per Share

$ $ $ $
Total

$ $ $ $

Delivery of the shares of class A common stock will be made on or about , 2006.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or
disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the
contrary is a criminal offense.

Credit Suisse Goldman, Sachs & Co. Morgan Stanley

Banc of America Securities LLC Citigroup Cowen and Company

Deutsche Bank Securities GMP Securities L.P. Jefferies Quarterdeck

Lehman Brothers Merrill Lynch & Co. RBC Capital Markets

Scotia Capital UBS Investment Bank Westwind Partners
The date of this prospectus is , 2006.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

Method of accounting for additional stock compensation expenses

In conjunction with this offering, we and our board of directors reassessed the fair market values under generally
accepted accounting principles ascribed for financial accounting purposes to common stock purchased by
management as well as restricted stock awards issued to employees under our Executive Incentive, Short Term
Incentive and Long Term Incentive Plans and to directors under our Director Stock Plan in fiscal 2005 and through
June 29, 2006. We adjusted the fair values ascribed to these equity awards for financial accounting purposes to the fair
value of our underlying equity using appraisals and valuations of the underlying net assets and other data necessary to
reasonably estimate such value on a per share basis at the various grant dates. We then calculated additional stock
compensation expense necessary to be recognized in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards,
or SFAS, No. 123(R), Share Based Payment, as a result of this change in valuation. Accordingly, we have restated our
financial statements as of June 29, 2006 and December 29, 2005 and for the periods then ended to reflect the
additional stock compensation expense and related tax impact had these equity awards been recorded at their currently
estimated fair values. We also recorded the entries that had previously remained as unadjusted differences at
December 29, 2005 resulting in a discrete non-cash charge to pre-tax earnings of $0.8 million for the period from
inception (February 7, 2005) through December 29, 2005 and a non-cash increase to pre-tax earnings of $1.2 million
for the six-month period ending June 29, 2006. The fair market value reassessment portion of the restatement resulted
in an additional non-cash charge to Selling, general and administrative expense of $30.5 million, and a corresponding
increase in Net loss of $30.5 million for the period from inception (February 7, 2005) through December 29, 2005 and
an additional non-cash charge to Selling, general and administrative expense of $19.0 million, an increase in Provision
for income taxes of $5.0 million and a reduction of Net income by $24.0 million for the six-month period ending
June 29, 2006. Additional information regarding the effect of the restatement to reflect these changes is included in
Note 2 to our restated consolidated financial statements included in this prospectus.
Adjustments to reflect the stock split

On November 16, 2006, a 3-for-1 stock split occurred. This split affected both classes of our common stock:
class A common stock and class B common stock. The post-split par value of our shares has remained $0.01 per share.
In this prospectus, we have adjusted all common share and per common share amounts in our restated consolidated
financial statements and restated interim consolidated financial statements and related disclosures to reflect the stock
split. We have also adjusted all other share related disclosures throughout this prospectus.
Restated Portions of Prospectus

We have restated portions of the following sections that were previously presented in Amendment No. 1 to the
registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part that was filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on August 29, 2006. This list does not represent all items that have been changed as we have made other
content changes consistent with the amendment process.

Summary

Capitalization

Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Financial Information

Selected Consolidated Financial Information and Other Data

Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Business

Executive Compensation
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ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS
Unless the context otherwise indicates or requires, as used in this prospectus, references to we, us, our orthe
company refer to Spirit AeroSystems Holdings, Inc., its subsidiaries and predecessors. References to Spirit refer only

to our subsidiary, Spirit AeroSystems, Inc., and references to Spirit Holdings refer only to Spirit AeroSystems
Holdings, Inc. References to Boeing refer to The Boeing Company and references to Airbus refer to Airbus S.A.S.
References to Onex entities refer to Onex Partners LP, Onex Corporation and their respective partners and affiliates
that, after giving effect to this offering, will beneficially own 98.4% of our class B common stock, and Onex refers to
Onex Corporation and its affiliates, including Onex Partners LP. References to OEMs refer to aircraft original
equipment manufacturers.

References to revenues on a combined basis, assuming the acquisition of the aerostructures division of BAE
Systems (Operations) Limited, or BAE Systems, occurred on January 1, 2006, combine our historical revenues with
the historical revenues of the aerostructures division of BAE Systems for the periods described. The historical
revenues for the aerostructures division of BAE Systems were represented to us by BAE Systems, have been
converted by us into U.S. dollars at the average conversion rates for the period, are unaudited and have not been
reviewed by our independent registered public accounting firm. The combined revenues may not be indicative of our
revenues if we had acquired the aerostructures division of BAE Systems on January 1, 2006, nor of how we may
perform in future periods. Although this information is calculated and presented on the basis of methodologies other
than in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, we present combined revenues because we
believe this information is useful to investors as an indicator of the magnitude of our business and the relative
significance of particular customers on a going-forward basis.

Spirit Holdings was formed on February 7, 2005. However, it did not commence operations until June 17, 2005,
following the acquisition of Boeing Wichita. The audited restated consolidated financial statements of Spirit Holdings
included in this prospectus cover the period from February 7, 2005 (date of inception) through December 29, 2005.
Throughout this prospectus, we refer to Spirit Holdings results of operations for the period from June 17, 2005 (date
of commencement of operations) through December 29, 2005, which are substantially identical to Spirit Holdings
results of operations for the period from February 7, 2005 through December 29, 2005.

iii
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus contains forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements give our current expectations or
forecasts of future events. Forward-looking statements generally can be identified by the use of forward-looking
terminology such as may, will, expect, intend, estimate, anticipate, believe, project, or continue, or«c
words. These statements reflect management s current views with respect to future events and are subject to risks and
uncertainties, both known and unknown. Our actual results may vary materially from those anticipated in
forward-looking statements. We caution investors not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements.

Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from forward-looking statements include, but
are not limited to:

our ability to continue to grow our business and execute our growth strategy;

the build rates of certain Boeing aircraft including, but not limited to, the B737 program, the B747 program, the
B767 program and the B777 program and build rates of the Airbus A320 and A380 programs;

our ability to enter into supply arrangements with additional customers and to satisfy performance requirements
under existing supply contracts with Boeing and Airbus;

any adverse impact on Boeing s production of aircraft resulting from reduced orders by Boeing s customers;

the success and timely progression of Boeing s new B787 aircraft program, including receipt of necessary
regulatory approvals;

future levels of business in the aerospace and commercial transport industries;
competition from original equipment manufacturers and other aerostructures suppliers;

the effect of governmental laws, such as U.S. export control laws, environmental laws and agency regulation, in
the U.S. and abroad;

the effect of new commercial and business aircraft development programs, their timing and resource requirements
that may be placed on us;

the cost and availability of raw materials;

our ability to recruit and retain highly skilled employees and our relationships with the unions representing many
of our employees;

spending by the United States and other governments on defense;
our continuing ability to operate successfully as a stand alone company;
the outcome or impact of ongoing or future litigation and regulatory actions; and
our exposure to potential product liability claims.
These factors are not exhaustive, and new factors may emerge or changes to the foregoing factors may occur that

could impact our business. Except to the extent required by law, we undertake no obligation to publicly update or
revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

Table of Contents 10



Edgar Filing: Spirit AeroSystems Holdings, Inc. - Form S-1/A

You should review carefully the sections captioned Risk Factors and Management s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations in this prospectus for a more complete discussion of these and other
factors that may affect our business.

iv
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INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA
The market data and other statistical information used throughout this prospectus are based on independent
industry publications. Some data are also based on our good faith estimates, which are derived from our review of
internal surveys, as well as independent industry publications, government publications, reports by market research
firms or other published independent sources. Although we believe that these sources are reliable, we have not
independently verified the information. None of the independent industry publications used in this prospectus was
prepared on our or our affiliates behalf or at our expense.

Table of Contents

12



Edgar Filing: Spirit AeroSystems Holdings, Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents

SUMMARY

This summary highlights information contained elsewhere in this prospectus. This summary does not contain all of
the information you should consider before investing in our class A common stock. You should read the entire
prospectus carefully, including the section describing the risks of investing in our class A common stock under the
caption Risk Factors and our financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this prospectus before
making an investment decision. Some of the statements in this summary constitute forward-looking statements. For
more information, please see Cautionary Statements Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.

Our Company
Overview

We are the largest independent non-OEM designer and manufacturer of aerostructures in the world. Aerostructures
are structural components such as fuselages, propulsion systems and wing systems for commercial and military
aircraft. Spirit s operations commenced on June 17, 2005 following the acquisition of Boeing s commercial
aerostructures manufacturing operations located in Wichita, Kansas, Tulsa, Oklahoma and McAlester, Oklahoma,
which we collectively refer to as Boeing Wichita. We refer to this acquisition as the Boeing Acquisition. On April 1,
2006, we became a supplier to Airbus through our acquisition of the aerostructures division of BAE Systems, or BAE
Aerostructures, headquartered in Prestwick, Scotland, which we refer to as the BAE Acquisition. Although Spirit
Holdings is a recently-formed company, its predecessor, Boeing Wichita, had 75 years of operating history and
expertise in the commercial and military aerostructures industry. For the nine months ended September 28, 2006, we
generated revenues of approximately $2,356 million and had net income of approximately $86 million. For the three
months ended September 28, 2006, we generated revenues of approximately $830 million and net income of
approximately $34 million.

We are the largest independent supplier of aerostructures to both Boeing and Airbus. We manufacture
aerostructures for every Boeing commercial aircraft currently in production, including over 70% of the airframe
content for the Boeing B737. We were also awarded a contract that makes us the largest aerostructures content
supplier on the Boeing B787, Boeing s next generation twin aisle aircraft. Furthermore, we believe we are the largest
content supplier for the wing for the Airbus A320 family and we are a significant supplier for Airbus new A380. Sales
related to large commercial aircraft production, some of which may be used in military applications, represented
approximately 99% of our revenues for the nine months ended September 28, 2006.

We derive our revenues primarily through long-term supply agreements with both Boeing and Airbus. For the
nine months ended September 28, 2006, approximately 89% and approximately 10% of our combined revenues
(assuming the BAE Acquisition occurred on January 1, 2006) were generated from sales to Boeing and Airbus,
respectively. We are currently the sole-source supplier of 96% of the products we sell to Boeing and Airbus, as
measured by dollar value of the products sold. We are a critical partner to our customers due to the broad range of
products we currently supply to them and our leading design and manufacturing capabilities using both metallic and
composite materials. Under our supply agreements with Boeing and Airbus, we supply essentially all of our products
for the life of the aircraft program (other than the A380), including commercial derivative models. For the A380 we
have a long-term supply contract with Airbus that covers a fixed number of product units.

We are organized into three principal reporting segments: (1) Fuselage Systems, which include the forward, mid-
and rear fuselage sections, (2) Propulsion Systems, which include nacelles (aerodynamic engine enclosures which
enhance propulsion installation efficiency, dampen engine noise and provide thrust reversing capabilities),
struts/pylons (structures that attach engines to airplane wings) and engine structural components and (3) Wing
Systems, which include wings, wing components and flight control

1
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surfaces. All other activities fall within the All Other segment. Fuselage Systems, Propulsion Systems, Wing Systems
and All Other represented approximately 49%, 27%, 23% and 1%, respectively, of our revenues for the quarter ended
September 28, 2006.
Industry Overview

Based on our research, the global market for aerostructures is estimated to have totaled $24 billion in annual sales
in 2004. Currently, OEMs outsource approximately half of the aerostructures market to independent third parties such
as ourselves. We expect the outsourcing of the design, engineering and manufacturing of aerostructures to increase as
OEMs increasingly focus operations on final assembly and support services for their customers. The original
equipment aerostructures market can be divided by end market application into three market sectors: (1) commercial
(including regional and business jets), (2) military and (3) modifications, upgrades, repairs and spares. While we serve
all three market sectors, we primarily derive our current revenues from the commercial market sector. We estimate
that the commercial sector represents approximately 61% of the total aerostructures market, while the military sector
represents approximately 28% and the modifications, upgrades, repairs and spares sector represents approximately
11%.

Demand for commercial aerostructures is directly correlated to demand for new aircraft. New large commercial
aircraft deliveries by Boeing and Airbus totaled 668 in 2005, up from 605 in 2004 and 586 in 2003, which was the
most recent cyclical trough following the 1999 peak of 914 deliveries. Demand for aircraft has rebounded since 2003,
resulting in record orders in 2005 for 2,057 Boeing and Airbus aircraft, which are expected to be delivered over the
next several years. According to published estimates by Boeing and Airbus, they expect to deliver a combined total of
approximately 825 commercial aircraft in 2006. As of September 30, 2006, Boeing and Airbus had a combined
backlog of 4,294 commercial aircraft, which has grown from a combined backlog of 2,597 commercial aircraft as of
December 31, 2004.

Our Competitive Strengths

We believe our key competitive strengths include:

Leading Position in the Growing Commercial Aerostructures Market. We are the largest independent non-OEM
commercial aerostructures manufacturer, with an estimated 19% market share among all aerostructures suppliers. We
are under contract to provide aerostructure products for approximately 97% of the aircraft that comprise Boeing s and
Airbus commercial aircraft backlog as of September 30, 2006. The significant aircraft order backlog and our strong
relationships with Boeing and Airbus should enable us to continue to profitably grow our core commercial
aerostructures business.

Participation on High Volume and Major Growth Platforms. We derive a high proportion of our Boeing revenues
from Boeing s high volume B737 program and a high proportion of our Airbus revenues from the high volume A320
program. The B737 and A320 families are Boeing s and Airbus best selling commercial airplanes. We also have been
awarded a significant amount of work on the major new twin aisle programs launched by Boeing and Airbus, the
B787 and the A380.

Stable Base Business. We have entered into exclusive long-term supply agreements with Boeing and Airbus, our
two largest customers, making us the exclusive supplier for most of the business covered by these contracts. Under
our supply agreements with Boeing and Airbus, we supply essentially all of our products for the life of the aircraft
program (other than the A380), including commercial derivative models. For the A380, we have a long-term supply
contract with Airbus that covers a fixed number of units. We believe our long-term supply contracts with our two
largest customers provide us with a stable base business upon which to build.

Strong Incumbent and Competitive Position. We have a strong incumbent position on the products we currently
supply to Boeing and Airbus due not only to our long-term supply agreements, but also to our

2
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long-standing relationships with Boeing and Airbus, as well as to the high costs OEMs would incur to switch suppliers
on existing programs. We have strong, embedded relationships with our primary customers as most of our senior
management team are former Boeing or Airbus executives.

We believe that OEMs incur significant costs to change aerostructures suppliers once contracts are awarded. Such
changes after contract award require additional testing and certification, which may create production delays and
significant costs for both the OEM and the new supplier. We also believe it would be cost prohibitive for other
suppliers to duplicate our facilities and the over 20,000 major pieces of equipment that we own or operate. The
combined insurable replacement value of all the buildings and equipment we own or operate is over $5 billion,
including approximately $2.3 billion and approximately $1.7 billion for buildings and equipment, respectively, that
we own and approximately $1.1 billion for other equipment used in the operation of our business. As a result, we
believe that so long as we continue to meet our customers requirements, the probability of their changing suppliers on
our current statement of work is quite low.

Industry Leading Technology, Design Capabilities and Manufacturing Expertise. We possess industry-leading
engineering capabilities that include significant expertise in structural design and technology, use of metallic and
composite materials, stress analysis, systems engineering and acoustics technology. With approximately 800 degreed
engineering and technical employees (including over 200 degreed contract engineers), we possess knowledge and
manufacturing know-how that would be difficult for other suppliers to replicate.

Competitive and Predictable Labor Cost Structure. In connection with the Boeing Acquisition, we achieved
comprehensive cost reductions. The cornerstones to our cost reductions were: (1) labor savings, (2) pension and other
benefit savings, (3) reduced corporate overhead, and (4) operational efficiency improvements. At the time of the
acquisition, we reduced our workforce by 15% and entered into new labor contracts with our unions that established
wage levels which are in-line with the local market. We also changed work rules and significantly reduced the number
of job categories, resulting in greater flexibility in work assignments and increased productivity. We were also able to
reduce pension costs, largely through a shift from a defined benefit plan to more predictable defined contribution and
union-sponsored plans, and to reduce fringe benefits by increasing employee contributions to health care plans and
decreasing retiree medical costs. In addition, we replaced corporate overhead previously allocated to Boeing Wichita
when it was a division of Boeing with our own significantly lower overhead spending. As a result of these initiatives,
we achieved approximately $200 million of annual recurring cost savings, assuming annual deliveries remain constant
at 2005 rates. Moreover, as a result of our long-term collective bargaining agreements with most of our labor unions,
our labor costs should be fairly predictable well into 2010.

We have also begun to implement a number of operational efficiency improvements, including global sourcing to
reduce supplier costs and realignment of our business units. Since the Boeing Acquisition, as a result of these
efficiency initiatives, we expect to achieve approximately $80 million of additional average annual recurring cost
savings, assuming annual deliveries remain constant at 2005 rates.

Experienced Management Team with Significant Equity Ownership. We have an experienced and proven
management team with an average of over 20 years of aerospace industry experience. Our management team has
successfully expanded our business, reduced costs and established the stand alone operations of our business. After
giving effect to this offering, members of our management team will hold common stock equivalent to approximately
0.5% of our company on a fully diluted basis.
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Our Business Strategy

Our goal is to remain a leading aerostructures manufacturer and to increase revenues while maximizing our
profitability and growth. Our strategy includes the following:

Support Increased Aircraft Deliveries. We value being the largest independent aerostructures supplier to both
Boeing and Airbus and core to our business strategy is a determination to meet or exceed their expectations under our
existing supply arrangements. We are constantly focused on improving our manufacturing efficiency and maintaining
our high standards of quality and on-time delivery to meet these expectations. We are also focused on supporting our
customers increase in new aircraft production and the introduction of key aircraft programs such as the Boeing B787
and the Airbus A380. We are adjusting our manufacturing processes, properties and facilities to accommodate an
increase in production and a shift in mix to a higher ratio of larger aircraft, which generally have higher dollar value
content.

Win New Business from Existing and New Customers. We have established a sales and marketing infrastructure to
support our efforts to win business from new and existing customers. We believe that we are well positioned to win
additional work from Boeing and Airbus, given our strong relationships, our size, design and build capabilities and
our financial resources, which are necessary to make proper investments. We believe that opportunities for increased
business from our customers will arise on work that they currently produce internally but that they might shift to an
external supplier in the future and work on new aircraft programs. As an independent company following the Boeing
Acquisition, we now have significant opportunities to increase our sales to OEMs other than Boeing. We believe our
design, engineering and manufacturing capabilities are highly attractive to potential new customers and provide a
competitive advantage in winning new aerostructures business. We have won several significant contracts from
non-Boeing customers in competitive bid situations since the Boeing Acquisition.

Research and Development Investment in Next Generation Technologies. We invest in direct research and
development for current programs to strengthen our relationships with our customers and new programs to generate
new business. As part of our research and development effort, we work closely with OEMs and integrate our
engineering teams into their design processes. We believe our close coordination with OEMs positions us to win new
business on new commercial and military platforms.

Provide New Value-Added Services to our Customers. We believe we are one of the few independent suppliers
that possess the core competencies to not only manufacture, but also to integrate and assemble complex system and
structural components. For example, we have been selected to assemble and integrate avionics, electrical systems,
hydraulics, wiring and other components for the forward fuselage and pylons for the Boeing B787. As a result, Boeing
expects to be able to ultimately assemble a B787 so that it is ready for test flying within three days after it receives our
shipset, as compared to 25 to 30 days for assembly of a B737. We believe our ability to integrate complex components
into aerostructures is a service that greatly benefits our customers by reducing their flow time and inventory holding
costs.

Continued Improvement to our Low Cost Structure. Although we achieved significant cost reductions at the time
of acquisition, we remain focused on further reducing costs. There continue to be cost saving opportunities in our
business and we have identified and begun to implement them. We expect that most of our future cost saving
opportunities will arise from increased productivity, continued outsourcing of non-core activities, and improved
procurement and sourcing through our global sourcing initiatives. We believe our strategic sourcing expertise should
allow us to develop and manage low-cost supply chains in Asia and Central Europe. Our goal is to continue to
increase our material sourcing from low-cost jurisdictions.

Pursue Strategic Acquisitions on an Opportunistic Basis. The commercial aerostructures market is highly
fragmented with many small private businesses and divisions of larger public companies. Given the market
fragmentation, coupled with the trend by OEMs to outsource work to Tier 1 manufacturers that coordinate suppliers
and integrate systems into airframes that they manufacture, we believe our industry could experience significant
consolidation in the coming years. Although our main focus is to grow our

4

Table of Contents 16



Edgar Filing: Spirit AeroSystems Holdings, Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents

business organically, we believe we are well positioned to capture additional market share and diversify our current
business through opportunistic strategic acquisitions.
The Boeing Acquisition and Related Transactions

In December 2004 and February 2005, an investor group led by Onex Partners LP and Onex Corporation formed
Spirit and Spirit Holdings, respectively, for the purpose of acquiring Boeing Wichita. The Boeing Acquisition was
completed on June 16, 2005. Prior to the acquisition, Boeing Wichita functioned as an internal supplier of parts and
assemblies for Boeing s airplane programs and had very few sales to third parties. See The Transactions The Boeing
Acquisition.

In connection with the Boeing Acquisition, we entered into a long-term supply agreement under which we are
Boeing s exclusive supplier for substantially all of the products and services provided by Boeing Wichita to Boeing
prior to the Boeing Acquisition. Pricing for existing products on in-production models is contractually set through
May 2013, with average prices decreasing at higher volume levels and increasing at lower volume levels, thereby
helping to protect our margins if volume is reduced. We also entered into a long-term supply agreement for Boeing s
new B787 platform covering the life of this platform, including commercial derivatives. Under this contract we will be
Boeing s exclusive supplier for the forward fuselage, fixed and moveable leading wing edges and struts for the B787.
Pricing for these products on the B787-8 model is generally set through 2021, with prices decreasing as cumulative
production volume levels are achieved.

The BAE Acquisition

On April 1, 2006, through our wholly-owned subsidiary, Spirit AeroSystems (Europe) Limited, or Spirit Europe,
we acquired BAE Aerostructures. Spirit Europe manufactures leading and trailing wing edges and other wing
components for commercial aircraft programs for Airbus and Boeing and produces various aerostructure components
for certain Raytheon business jets. The BAE Acquisition provides us with a foundation to increase future sales to
Airbus, as Spirit Europe is a key supplier of wing and flight control surfaces for the A320 platform, Airbus core single
aisle program, and of wing components for the A380 platform, one of Airbus most important new programs and the
world s largest commercial passenger aircraft.

Recent Developments

In connection with the issuance of our December 29, 2005 and June 29, 2006 financial statements during the third
quarter of 2006, we concluded that we had a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting as
described below.

We did not maintain effective controls over our determination of the fair values ascribed for financial reporting
purposes to stock compensation awards granted to our employees and directors through June 29, 2006 in
accordance with SFAS No. 123(R), Share Based Payment. Specifically, we did not properly estimate the fair
values of these awards in determining the accuracy of our stock compensation expense under SFAS No. 123(R).
This control deficiency resulted in a restatement of our financial results as of December 29, 2005 and June 29,
2006 and for the periods then ended to adjust selling, general and administrative expenses, income taxes and
equity accounts as well as our earnings per share and stock compensation financial statement disclosures.

During the third quarter of 2006, we began to remediate this material weakness. These remediation efforts
included the development of a valuation methodology and corresponding model to determine the fair value of our
underlying equity on a per share basis at each of our equity award grant dates. In addition, we have implemented
additional corporate accounting oversight, monitoring and review procedures to validate the fair values and resulting
stock compensation expense to be recorded in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R). As a result, we believe that this
material weakness has been remediated.

Table of Contents 17



Edgar Filing: Spirit AeroSystems Holdings, Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents

Company Information

Spirit Holdings, formerly known as Mid-Western Aircraft Systems Holdings, Inc., is a Delaware corporation that
was formed on February 7, 2005. Spirit Holdings is the parent company of Spirit. Spirit s predecessor, Boeing Wichita,
had more than 75 years of operating history as a division of Boeing. Our principal executive offices are located at
3801 South Oliver, Wichita, Kansas 67210 and our telephone number at that address is (316) 526-9000. Our website
address is www.spiritaero.com. Information contained on our website is not part of this prospectus and is not
incorporated in this prospectus by reference.

Our Principal Equity Investor

Upon completion of this offering, Onex entities will beneficially own an aggregate of approximately 58.3% of our

common stock and 92.1% of our combined voting power. See Principal and Selling Stockholders.
Summary Risk Factors

Investing in our class A common stock involves risks. You should refer to the section entitled Risk Factors for a
discussion of certain risks you should consider before deciding whether to invest in our class A common stock. Some
of these risks are set forth below.

Sensitivity of Business to External Factors. Our business is sensitive to aircraft orders by and deliveries to
commercial airlines, which are subject to general world safety and economic conditions, including fuel prices, that
affect the demand for air transportation. Furthermore, the market in which we operate is cyclical, which affects our
business and operating results.

Dependence on Boeing and, to a Lesser Extent, Airbus. We are dependent on Boeing and, to a lesser extent,
Airbus, to continue to demand our products. In particular, we are dependent on Boeing s demand for a single aircraft
program, the B737, which accounted for approximately 61% of our revenues for the nine months ended September 28,
2006. Although we intend to diversify our customer base, we expect that Boeing and, to a lesser extent, Airbus, will
continue to account for a substantial portion of our sales for the foreseeable future.

Historical and Ongoing Relationship with Boeing. Our historical and ongoing relationship with Boeing may be a
potential deterrent to potential and existing customers, including Airbus. Even though we believe that we have
sufficient resources to service multiple OEMs, competitors of Boeing may see our relationship with Boeing as
creating a conflict of interest, which would limit our ability to increase our customer base.

Dependence Upon the Success of Boeing s New B787 Program. We are dependent, in large part, on the success of
Boeing s new B787 program. If there is not sufficient demand for the B787 aircraft, or if there are technological
problems or other delays in the regulatory certification or manufacturing and delivery schedule, our business, financial
condition and results of operations may be materially adversely affected.

Very Competitive Business Environment. We face competition from aircraft manufacturers choosing not to
outsource production of aerostructures as well as from third party aerostructures suppliers, including companies with
greater financial resources than ours.

Fixed-Price Contracts. We have fixed-price contracts, which may commit us to unfavorable terms. We bear the
risk that increased or unexpected costs may reduce our profit margins or cause us to sustain losses on these contracts.

6

Table of Contents 18



Edgar Filing: Spirit AeroSystems Holdings, Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents
Class A common stock offered
by us

Class A common stock offered
by the selling stockholders

Common stock outstanding after
this offering

Voting rights of class A
common stock

Use of proceeds

Dividend policy

Risk factors

Proposed NYSE symbol

The Offering
10,416,667 shares

41,666,667 shares

52,083,334 shares of class A common stock and 75,671,517 shares of class B
common stock

Our class A common stock is entitled to one vote per share. Our class B common
stock, which is not being offered in this offering but votes together with our class A
common stock as a single class, is entitled to ten votes per share (reducing to one
vote per share under certain limited circumstances). Our class B common stock,
which is convertible into shares of our class A common stock on a 1-for-1 basis, is
identical to our class A common stock in all other respects.

We estimate that the net proceeds from the sale of shares of our class A common
stock in this offering will be approximately $229 million. We will not receive any
proceeds from the sale of shares by the selling stockholders.

We intend to use the net proceeds from this offering to repay approximately

$100 million of debt under our senior secured credit facility and to pay
approximately $129 million of the obligations which will become due upon the
closing of the offering under our Union Equity Participation Plan. An affiliate of
Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC, one of the representatives of the underwriters,
is a lender under, and will receive a portion of the net proceeds used to repay debt
under, our senior secured credit facility. See Use of Proceeds.

We currently do not intend to pay cash dividends and, under conditions in which
our cash is below specified levels, are prohibited from doing so under credit

agreements governing our credit facilities.

See Risk Factors on page 10 of this prospectus for a discussion of factors you
should carefully consider before deciding to invest in our class A common stock.

SPR

The number of shares of class A common stock being offered in this offering represents 40.8% of our outstanding
common stock and 6.4% of our combined voting power, in each case after giving effect to this offering. For more
information on the ownership of our common stock, see Principal and Selling Stockholders.

Except as otherwise indicated, all of the information presented in this prospectus assumes the following:

no exercise by the underwriters of their option to purchase additional shares;

the effectiveness of a 3-for-1 stock split of our common stock that occurred on November 16, 2006;

the exclusion of approximately 5,006,829 shares of class A common stock to be issued pursuant to our Union
Equity Participation Plan (approximately 5,020,496 shares if the underwriters over-allotment option is exercised
in full) as a result of the closing of this offering (which shares will be issued on or prior to March 15, 2007);
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the exclusion of 6,942,330 shares issued to certain members of our management and to certain directors of Spirit
which are subject to vesting requirements under our benefit plans; and

the exclusion of 860,224 Units of phantom stock issued pursuant to our Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan.
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Summary Historical and Pro Forma Financial Data

Set forth below is a summary of certain of our historical consolidated financial data for the periods and at the dates
indicated. Results for periods prior to and including June 16, 2005 reflect data of our predecessor, Boeing Wichita, or
the Predecessor, for financial accounting purposes. Results for periods beginning on or after June 17, 2005 reflect our
financial data after the Boeing Acquisition. Financial data as of and for the years ended December 31, 2003
(Predecessor) and December 31, 2004 (Predecessor), for the period from January 1, 2005 through June 16, 2005
(Predecessor), as of June 16, 2005 (Predecessor), for the period from June 17, 2005 through December 29, 2005
(Spirit Holdings), and as of December 29, 2005 (Spirit Holdings) are derived from the restated audited consolidated
financial statements of the Predecessor or Spirit Holdings, as applicable, included in this prospectus. Financial data as
of and for the nine months ended September 28, 2006 (Spirit Holdings) are derived from the unaudited consolidated
financial statements of Spirit Holdings included in this prospectus which, in the opinion of management, include all
normal, recurring adjustments necessary to state fairly the data included therein in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles, or GAAP, for interim financial information. Interim results are not necessarily
indicative of the results to be expected for the entire fiscal year.

The Predecessor s historical financial data for periods and as of dates prior to the Boeing Acquisition are not
comparable with Spirit Holdings financial data for periods and as of dates subsequent to the Boeing Acquisition. Prior
to the Boeing Acquisition, the Predecessor was a division of Boeing and was not a separate legal entity. Historically,
the Predecessor functioned as an internal supplier of parts and assemblies to Boeing airplane programs and had
insignificant sales to third parties. It operated as a cost center of Boeing, meaning that it recognized the cost of
products manufactured for Boeing Commercial Airplanes, or BCA, programs but did not recognize any corresponding
revenues for those products. No intra-company pricing was established for the parts and assemblies that the
Predecessor supplied to Boeing.

On the closing date of the Boeing Acquisition, Spirit entered into exclusive supply agreements with Boeing
pursuant to which Spirit began to supply parts and assemblies to Boeing at pricing established under those
agreements, and began to operate as a stand alone entity with revenues and its own accounting records. In addition,
prior to the Boeing Acquisition, certain costs were allocated to the Predecessor which were not necessarily
representative of the costs the Predecessor would have incurred for the corresponding functions had it been a stand
alone entity. At the time of the Boeing Acquisition significant cost savings were realized through labor savings,
pension and other benefit savings, reduced corporate overhead and operational improvements. As a result of these
substantial changes which occurred concurrently with the Boeing Acquisition, the Predecessor s historical financial
data for periods and as of dates prior to the Boeing Acquisition are not comparable with Spirit Holdings financial data
for periods and as of dates subsequent to the Boeing Acquisition.

The summary pro forma consolidated financial information for the period from June 17, 2005 through
December 29, 2005, and the nine month period ended September 28, 2006 reflect the completion of this offering and
the application of the proceeds therefrom, assuming that the offering was consummated on January 1, 2005. The
unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information is presented for informational purposes only and does not
purport to represent what our results of operations would have been had the Boeing Acquisition and this offering
occurred on the dates indicated above or to project results of operations for any future period.

You should read the summary consolidated financial data set forth below in conjunction with Capitalization,
Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Financial Data,  Selected Consolidated Financial Information and Other Data and
Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and our restated

consolidated financial statements and related notes contained elsewhere in this prospectus.
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Spirit Holdings Predecessor

Pro Forma as Adjusted

for
this Offering Period
Period
from
from
June 17, Period January 1,
from
Mlj)'n“t‘;s 2005 le)‘nnt‘ils June 17, 2005  Fiscal Year Ended
Ended through Ended 2005 through
through
September 28)ecember 29September 28, December 29, June 16December 3December 31,
2006 2005(1) 2006 2005 2005 2004 2003
(Unaudited) (Restated)
(Dollars in millions)

Statement of
Operations Data:
Net sales/total cost
transferred $2356 $ 1,208 $ 2,356 $ 1,208 $ NVA $ NA 3 N/A
Costs of sales/products
transferred 1,927 1,057 1,927 $ 1,057 1,164 2,074 2,064
SG&A, R&D, other
period costs(2) 245 219 243 $ 218 91 173 144
Total costs and
expenses 2,172 1,276 2,170 1,275 1,254 2,247 2,208
Operating income (loss) 184 (68) 186 $ (67) N/A N/A N/A
Interest expense and
financing fee
amortization 35 (25) (29) $ 21 N/A N/A N/A
Interest income 21 16 21 $ 16 N/A N/A N/A
Other income (loss), net 4 1 4 $ 1 N/A N/A N/A
Net income
(loss) before taxes 174 (76) 182 $ (71) N/A N/A N/A
Provision for income
taxes (88) (14) (88) $ (14) N/A N/A N/A
Net income (loss) $ 86 $ 90) $ 94 $ (85) N/A N/A N/A
Basic weighted average
number of common
shares outstanding 113.9 113.5 133.4 132.6 N/A N/A N/A

$ 076 $ (0.80) $ 0.70 $  (0.64) N/A N/A N/A
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Basic net income
(loss) per share
applicable to common
stock

Diluted weighted
average number of
common shares
outstanding 121.8 113.5 139.8 132.6 N/A N/A N/A
Diluted net income
(loss) per share
applicable to common

stock $ 071 $ (0.80) $ 0.67 $ (0.64) N/A N/A N/A
Other Financial Data:

Capital expenditures $ 233 § 145 % 233 $ 145 $ 48 § 54 % 43
Depreciation and

amortization $ 37 $ 32 % 37 $ 32 $ 40 $ 91 § 97
Balance Sheet Data

(end of period)(3):

Cash and cash

equivalents $ 189 $ 241§ 164 N/A $ 1 $ 3 9 4
Working capital(4) $ 615 $ 436 $ 615 N/A $ 431 § 481 § 474
Total assets $233 $ 1,657 $ 2,307 N/A $1,020 $ 1,044 $ 1,093
Total long-term debt $ 699 $ 710 % 599 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Shareholders  equity $ 471 $ 326§ 422 N/A N/A N/A N/A

(1) See Note 2 of the restated consolidated financial statements for further information regarding the restatement.

(2) Includes non-cash stock compensation expense of $41 million, $35 million, $41 million, $35 million,
$22 million, $23 million and $13 million for the respective periods starting with the nine months ended
September 28, 2006.

(3) Each $1.00 increase or decrease in the assumed initial public offering price of $24.00 per share, the midpoint of
the range on the cover of the prospectus, would increase or decrease, as applicable, our pro forma cash and cash
equivalents, working capital, total assets and total stockholders equity by approximately $10 million, assuming
the number of shares offered by us, as set forth on the cover page of this prospectus, remains the same and after
deducting the estimated underwriting discounts and commissions payable by us.

(4) Ending balance of accounts receivable, inventory and accounts payable on net basis.
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RISK FACTORS

An investment in our class A common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the
factors described below in addition to the other information set forth in this prospectus before deciding whether to
make an investment in our class A common stock. Any of the following risks could materially adversely affect our
business, financial condition or results of operations. In such case, you may lose all or part of your original
investment.

Risk Factors Related to our Business and Industry
Our commercial business is cyclical and sensitive to commercial airlines profitability. The business of commercial
airlines is, in turn, affected by general economic conditions and world safety considerations.

We compete in the aerostructures segment of the aerospace industry. Our business is affected indirectly by the
financial condition of the commercial airlines and other economic factors, including general economic conditions and
world safety considerations, that affect the demand for air transportation. Specifically, our commercial business is
dependent on the demand from passenger airlines for the production of new aircraft. Accordingly, demand for our
commercial products is tied to the worldwide airline industry s ability to finance the purchase of new aircraft and the
industry s forecasted demand for seats, flights and routes. Similarly, the size and age of the worldwide commercial
aircraft fleet affects the demand for new aircraft and, consequently, for our products. Such factors, in conjunction with
evolving economic conditions, cause the market in which we operate to be cyclical to varying degrees, thereby
affecting our business and operating results.

During the past several years, softening of the global and U.S. economies, reduced corporate travel spending,
excess capacity in the market for commercial air travel, changing pricing models among airlines and significantly
increased fuel, security and insurance costs have resulted in many airlines reporting, and continuing to forecast,
significant net losses. Moreover, during recent years, in addition to the generally soft global and U.S. economies, the
September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks, conflicts in Iraq and Afghanistan and concerns relating to the transmission of
SARS have contributed to diminished demand for air travel. Many major U.S. air carriers have parked or retired a
portion of their fleets and have reduced workforces and flights to mitigate their large losses. From 2001 to 2003,
numerous carriers rescheduled or canceled orders for aircraft to be purchased from the major aircraft manufacturers,
including Boeing and Airbus. Any protracted economic slump or future terrorist attacks, war or health concerns,
including the prospect of human transmission of the Avian Flu Virus, could cause airlines to cancel or delay the
purchase of additional new aircraft. If demand for new aircraft decreases, there would likely be a decrease in demand
for our commercial aircraft products and our business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially
adversely affected.

Our business could be materially adversely affected if one of our components causes an aircraft accident.

Our operations expose us to potential liabilities for personal injury or death as a result of the failure of an aircraft
component that has been designed, manufactured or serviced by us or our suppliers. While we believe that our liability
insurance is adequate to protect us from future product liability claims, it may not be adequate. Also, we may not be
able to maintain insurance coverage in the future at an acceptable cost. Any such liability not covered by insurance or
for which third party indemnification is not available could require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash
flows to make payments on such liability, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

An accident caused by one of our components could also damage our reputation for quality products. We believe
our customers consider safety and reliability as key criteria in selecting a provider of aerostructures. If an accident
were to be caused by one of our components, or if we were otherwise to fail to maintain a satisfactory record of safety
and reliability, our ability to retain and attract customers could be materially adversely affected.
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Because we depend on Boeing and, to a lesser extent, Airbus, as our largest customers, our sales, cash flows from
operations and results of operations will be negatively affected if either Boeing or Airbus reduces the number of
products it purchases from us or if either experiences business difficulties.

Currently, Boeing is our largest customer and Airbus is our second-largest customer. For the nine months ended
September 28, 2006, approximately 89% and approximately 10% of our combined revenues (assuming the BAE
Acquisition occurred on January 1, 2006) were generated from sales to Boeing and Airbus, respectively. Although we
intend to diversify our customer base by entering into supply arrangements with additional customers, we cannot
assure you that we will be successful in doing so. Even if we are successful in retaining new customers, we expect that
Boeing and, to a lesser extent, Airbus, will continue to account for a substantial portion of our sales for the foreseeable
future. Although we are a party to various supply contracts with Boeing and Airbus which obligate Boeing and Airbus
to purchase all of their requirements for certain products from us, if we breach certain obligations under these supply
agreements and Boeing or Airbus exercises its right to terminate such agreements, our business will be materially
adversely affected. In addition, we have agreed to a limitation on recoverable damages in the event Boeing wrongfully
terminates our main supply agreement with it with respect to any model of airplane program, so if this occurs, we may
not be able to recover the full amount of our actual damages. Furthermore, if Boeing or Airbus (1) experiences a
decrease in requirements for the products which we supply to it, (2) experiences a major disruption in its business,
such as a strike, work stoppage or slowdown, a supply chain problem or a decrease in orders from its customers or
(3) files for bankruptcy protection, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially
adversely affected.

Our largest customer, Boeing, operates in a very competitive business environment.

Boeing operates in a highly competitive industry. Competition from Airbus, Boeing s main competitor, as well as
from regional jet makers, has intensified as these competitors expand aircraft model offerings and competitively price
their products. As a result of this competitive environment, Boeing continues to face pressure on product offerings and
sale prices. While we do have supply agreements with Airbus, we currently have substantially more business with
Boeing and thus any adverse impact on Boeing s production of aircraft resulting from this competitive environment
may have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Potential and existing customers, including Airbus, may view our historical and ongoing relationship with Boeing
as a deterrent to providing us with future business.

We operate in a highly competitive industry and any of our other potential or existing customers, including Airbus,
may be threatened by our historical and ongoing relationship with Boeing. Prior to the Boeing Acquisition, Boeing
Wichita functioned as an internal supplier of parts and assemblies for Boeing s aircraft programs and had very few
sales to third parties. Other potential and existing customers, including Airbus, may be deterred from using the same
supplier that previously produced aerostructures solely for Boeing. Although we believe we have sufficient resources
to service multiple OEMs, competitors of Boeing may see a conflict of interest in our providing both them and Boeing
with the parts for their different aircraft programs. If we are unable to successfully develop our relationship with other
customers and OEMs, including Airbus, we may be unable to increase our customer base. If there is not sufficient
demand for our business, our financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

Our business depends, in large part, on sales of components for a single aircraft program, the B737.

For the nine months ended September 28, 2006, approximately 61% of our revenues were generated from sales of
components to Boeing for the B737 aircraft. While we have entered into long-term supply agreements with Boeing to
continue to provide components for the B737 for the life of the aircraft program, including commercial and the
military Multi-mission Maritime Aircraft, or MMA, derivatives, Boeing does not have any obligation to purchase
components from us for any replacement for the B737 that is not a commercial derivative model. In the event Boeing
develops a next generation single-aisle

11

Table of Contents 25



Edgar Filing: Spirit AeroSystems Holdings, Inc. - Form S-1/A

Table of Contents

aircraft program to replace the B737 which is not a commercial derivative, we may not have the next generation
technology, engineering and manufacturing capability necessary to obtain significant aerostructures supply business
for such replacement program, may not be able to provide components for such replacement program at competitive
prices or, for other reasons, may not be engaged by Boeing to the extent of our involvement in the B737 or at all. If we
were unable to obtain significant aerostructures supply business for the B737 replacement program, our business,
financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

Our business depends on the success of a new model aircraft, the B787.

The success of our business will depend, in large part, on the success of Boeing s new B787 program. We have
entered into supply agreements with Boeing pursuant to which we will be a Tier 1 supplier to the B787 program. We
have made and will continue to make a significant investment in this program before the first commercial delivery of a
B787 aircraft, which is scheduled for 2008. If there is not sufficient demand for the B787 aircraft, or if there are
technological problems or significant delays in the regulatory certification or manufacturing and delivery schedule for
such aircraft, our business, financial condition and results of operations may be materially adversely affected.

We incur risk associated with new programs.

New programs with new technologies typically carry risks associated with design responsibility, development of
new production tools, hiring and training of qualified personnel, increased capital and funding commitments, ability to
meet customer specifications, delivery schedules and unique contractual requirements, supplier performance, ability of
the customer to meet its contractual obligations to us, and our ability to accurately estimate costs associated with such
programs. In addition, any new aircraft program may not generate sufficient demand or may experience technological
problems or significant delays in the regulatory certification or manufacturing and delivery schedule. If we were
unable to perform our obligations under new programs to the customer s satisfaction, if we were unable to manufacture
products at our estimated costs or if a new program in which we had made a significant investment experienced weak
demand, delays or technological problems, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be
materially adversely affected.

In addition, beginning new work on existing programs also carries risks associated with the transfer of technology,
knowledge and tooling.

Our operations depend on our ability to maintain continuing, uninterrupted production at our manufacturing
facilities. Our production facilities are subject to physical and other risks that could disrupt production.

Our manufacturing facilities could be damaged or disrupted by a natural disaster, war, terrorist activity or
sustained mechanical failure. Although we have obtained property damage and business interruption insurance, a
major catastrophe, such as a fire, flood, tornado or other natural disaster at any of our sites, war or terrorist activities in
any of the areas where we conduct operations or the sustained mechanical failure of a key piece of equipment could
result in a prolonged interruption of all or a substantial portion of our business. Any disruption resulting from these
events could cause significant delays in shipments of products and the loss of sales and customers and we may not
have insurance to adequately compensate us for any of these events. A large portion of our operations takes place at
one facility in Wichita, Kansas and any significant damage or disruption to this facility in particular would materially
adversely affect our ability to service our customers.

We operate in a very competitive business environment.

Competition in the aerostructures segment of the aerospace industry is intense. Although we have entered into

requirements contracts with Boeing and Airbus under which we are their exclusive supplier for
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certain aircraft parts, in trying to expand our customer base and the types of parts we make we will face substantial
competition from both OEMs and non-OEM aerostructures suppliers.

OEMs may choose not to outsource production of aerostructures due to, among other things, their own direct labor
and other overhead considerations and capacity utilization at their own facilities. Consequently, traditional factors
affecting competition, such as price and quality of service, may not be significant determinants when OEMs decide
whether to produce a part in-house or to outsource.

Our principal competitors among aerostructures suppliers are Alenia Aeronautica, Fuji Aerospace Technology
Co., Ltd., GKN Aerospace, The Goodrich Corporation, Kawasaki Precision Machinery (U.S.A.), Inc., Mitsubishi
Electric Corporation, Saab AB, Snecma, Triumph Group, Inc. and Vought Aircraft Industries. Some of our
competitors have greater resources than we do and, therefore, may be able to adapt more quickly to new or emerging
technologies and changes in customer requirements, or devote greater resources to the promotion and sale of their
products than we can. Providers of aerostructures have traditionally competed on the basis of cost, technology, quality
and service. We believe that developing and maintaining a competitive advantage will require continued investment in
product development, engineering, supply chain management and sales and marketing, and we may not have enough
resources to make such investments. For these reasons, we may not be able to compete successfully in this market or
against such competitors, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results
of operations.

High switching costs may substantially limit our ability to obtain business that is currently under contract with
other suppliers.

Once a contract is awarded by an OEM to an aerostructures supplier, the OEM and the supplier are typically
required to spend significant amounts of time and capital on design, manufacture, testing and certification of tooling
and other equipment. For an OEM to change suppliers during the life of an aircraft program, further testing and
certification would be necessary, and the OEM would be required either to move the tooling and equipment used by
the existing supplier for performance under the existing contract, which may be expensive and difficult (or
impossible), or to manufacture new tooling and equipment. Accordingly, any change of suppliers would likely result
in production delays and additional costs to both the OEM and the new supplier. These high switching costs may
make it more difficult for us to bid competitively against existing suppliers and less likely that an OEM will be willing
to switch suppliers during the life of an aircraft program, which could materially adversely affect our ability to obtain
new work on existing aircraft programs.

Pre-Boeing Acquisition financial statements are not comparable to post-Boeing Acquisition statements and,
because of our limited operating history, nothing in our financial statements can show you how we would operate
in a market downturn.

Our historical financial statements prior to the Boeing Acquisition are not comparable to our financial statements
subsequent to June 16, 2005. Historically, Boeing Wichita was operated as a cost center of BCA and recognized the
cost of products manufactured for BCA programs without recognizing any corresponding revenues for those products.
Accordingly, the financial statements with respect to periods prior to the Boeing Acquisition and the pro forma
financial information included in this prospectus do not represent the financial results that would have been achieved
had Boeing Wichita been operated as a stand alone entity during those periods. Additionally, our financial statements
are not indicative of how we would operate through a market downturn. Since the Boeing Acquisition on June 16,
2005, we have operated in a market experiencing an upturn, with both Boeing and Airbus posting record orders in
2005. Our financial results from this limited history cannot give you any indication of our ability to operate in a
market experiencing significantly lower demand for our products and the products of our customers. As such, we
cannot assure you that we will be able to successfully operate in such a market.
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Increases in labor costs, potential labor disputes and work stoppages at our facilities or the facilities of our
suppliers or customers could materially adversely affect our financial performance.

Our financial performance is affected by the availability of qualified personnel and the cost of labor. A majority of
our workforce is represented by unions. If our workers were to engage in a strike, work stoppage or other slowdown,
we could experience a significant disruption of our operations, which could cause us to be unable to deliver products
to our customers on a timely basis and could result in a breach of our supply agreements. This could result in a loss of
business and an increase in our operating expenses, which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. In addition, our non-unionized labor force may become subject to labor
union organizing efforts, which could cause us to incur additional labor costs and increase the related risks that we
now face.

We have agreed with Boeing to continue to operate substantial manufacturing operations in Wichita, Kansas until
at least June 16, 2015. As a result, we may not be able to utilize lower cost labor from other locations. This may
prevent us from being able to offer our products at prices which are competitive in the marketplace and could have a
material adverse effect on our ability to generate new business.

In addition, many aircraft manufacturers, airlines and aerospace suppliers have unionized work forces. In 2005, a
labor strike by unionized employees at Boeing, our largest customer, temporarily halted commercial aircraft
production by Boeing, which had a significant short-term adverse impact on our operations. Additional strikes, work
stoppages or slowdowns experienced by aircraft manufacturers, airlines or aerospace suppliers could reduce our
customers demand for additional aircraft structures or prevent us from completing production of our aircraft
structures.

Our business may be materially adversely affected if we lose our government, regulatory or industry approvals, if
more stringent government regulations are enacted or if industry oversight is increased.

The Federal Aviation Administration, or FAA, prescribes standards and qualification requirements for
aerostructures, including virtually all commercial airline and general aviation products, and licenses component repair
stations within the United States. Comparable agencies, such as the Joint Aviation Authorities, or JAA, in Europe,
regulate these matters in other countries. If we fail to qualify for or obtain a required license for one of our products or
services or lose a qualification or license previously granted, the sale of the subject product or service would be
prohibited by law until such license is obtained or renewed and our business, financial condition and results of
operations could be materially adversely affected. In addition, designing new products to meet existing regulatory
requirements and retrofitting installed products to comply with new regulatory requirements can be expensive and
time consuming.

From time to time, the FAA, the JAA or comparable agencies propose new regulations or changes to existing
regulations. These changes or new regulations generally increase the costs of compliance. To the extent the FAA, the
JAA or comparable agencies implement regulatory changes, we may incur significant additional costs to achieve
compliance.

In addition, certain aircraft repair activities we intend to engage in may require the approval of the aircraft s OEM.
Our inability to obtain OEM approval could materially restrict our ability to perform such aircraft repair activities.

We are subject to regulation of our technical data and goods under U.S. export control laws.

As a manufacturer and exporter of defense and dual-use technical data and commodities, we are subject to
U.S. laws and regulations governing international trade and exports, including but not limited to the International
Traffic in Arms Regulations, administered by the U.S. Department of State, and the Export Administration
Regulations, administered by the U.S. Department of Commerce. Collaborative agreements that we may have with
foreign persons, including manufacturers and suppliers, are also subject to U.S. export control laws. In addition, we
are subject to trade sanctions against embargoed countries, administered by the Office of Foreign Assets Control
within the U.S. Department of the Treasury.
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A determination that we have failed to comply with one or more of these export controls or trade sanctions could
result in civil or criminal penalties, including the imposition of fines upon us as well as the denial of export privileges
and debarment from participation in U.S. government contracts. Additionally, restrictions may be placed on the export
of technical data and goods in the future as a result of changing geo-political conditions. Any one or more of such
sanctions could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We are subject to environmental regulation and our ongoing operations may expose us to environmental liabilities.

Our operations are subject to extensive regulation under environmental, health and safety laws and regulations in
the United States and the United Kingdom. We may be subject to potentially significant fines or penalties, including
criminal sanctions, if we fail to comply with these requirements. We have made, and will continue to make,
significant capital and other expenditures in order to comply with these laws and regulations. We cannot predict with
certainty what environmental legislation will be enacted in the future or how existing laws will be administered or
interpreted. Our operations involve the use of large amounts of hazardous substances and generate many types of
wastes. Spills and releases of these materials may subject us to clean-up liability. We cannot assure you that the
aggregate amount of future clean-up costs and other environmental liabilities will not be material.

Boeing, our predecessor at the Wichita facility, is under an administrative consent order issued by the Kansas
Department of Health and Environment, or KDHE, to contain and clean-up contaminated groundwater which
underlies a majority of the site. Pursuant to this order and its agreements with us, Boeing has a long-term remediation
plan in place, and treatment, containment and remediation efforts are underway. If Boeing does not comply with its
obligations under the order and these agreements, we may be required to undertake such efforts and make material
expenditures.

In connection with the BAE Acquisition, we acquired a manufacturing facility in Prestwick, Scotland that is
adjacent to contaminated property retained by BAE Systems. The contaminated property may be subject to a
regulatory action requiring remediation of the land. It is also possible that the contamination may spread into the
property we acquired. BAE Systems has agreed to indemnify us for certain clean-up costs related to existing pollution
on the acquired property, existing pollution that migrates from the acquired property to a third party s property and any
pollution that migrates to our property from property retained by BAE Systems. If BAE Systems does not comply
with its obligations under the agreement, we may be required to undertake such efforts and make material
expenditures.

In the future, contamination may be discovered at our facilities or at off-site locations where we send waste. The
remediation of such newly-discovered contamination, or the enactment of new laws or a stricter interpretation of
existing laws, may require us to make additional expenditures, some of which could be material. See Business
Environmental Matters.

Significant consolidation in the aerospace industry could make it difficult for us to obtain new business.

The aerospace industry has recently experienced consolidation among suppliers. Suppliers have consolidated and
formed alliances to broaden their product and integrated system offerings and achieve critical mass. This supplier
consolidation is in part attributable to aircraft manufacturers more frequently awarding long-term sole-source or
preferred supplier contracts to the most capable suppliers, thus reducing the total number of suppliers. If this
consolidation were to accelerate, it may become more difficult for us to be successful in obtaining new customers.
We may be materially adversely affected by high fuel prices.

Due to the competitive nature of the airline industry, airlines are often unable to pass on increased fuel prices to
customers by increasing fares. Fluctuations in the global supply of crude oil and the possibility of changes in
government policy on jet fuel production, transportation and marketing make it impossible to predict the future
availability of jet fuel. In the event there is an outbreak or escalation of
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hostilities or other conflicts or significant disruptions in oil production or delivery in oil-producing areas or elsewhere,
there could be reductions in the production or importation of crude oil and significant increases in the cost of fuel. If
there were major reductions in the availability of jet fuel or significant increases in its cost, or if current high prices
are sustained for a significant period of time, the airline industry and, as a result, our business, could be materially
adversely affected.

Interruptions in deliveries of components or raw materials or increased prices for components or raw materials
used in our products could materially adversely affect our profitability, margins and revenues.

Our dependency upon regular deliveries from particular suppliers of components and raw materials means that
interruptions or stoppages in such deliveries could materially adversely affect our operations until arrangements with
alternate suppliers, to the extent alternate suppliers exist, could be made. If any of our suppliers were unable or refused
to deliver materials to us for an extended period of time, or if we were unable to negotiate acceptable terms for the
supply of materials with these or alternative suppliers, our business could suffer. We may not be able to find
acceptable alternatives, and any such alternatives could result in increased costs for us. Even if acceptable alternatives
are found, the process of locating and securing such alternatives might be disruptive to our business and might lead to
termination of our supply agreements with our customers.

In addition, our profitability is affected by the prices of the components and raw materials, such as titanium,
aluminum and carbon fiber, used in the manufacture of our products. These prices may fluctuate based on a number of
factors beyond our control, including world oil prices, changes in supply and demand, general economic conditions,
labor costs, competition, import duties, tariffs, currency exchange rates and, in some cases, government regulation.
Although our supply agreements with Boeing and Airbus allow us to pass on certain unusual increases in component
and raw material costs to Boeing and Airbus in limited situations, we will not be fully compensated for such increased
costs.

Our business will suffer if certain key officers or employees discontinue employment with us or if we are unable to
recruit and retain highly skilled staff.

The success of our business is highly dependent upon the skills, experience and efforts of our President and Chief
Executive Officer, Jeffrey Turner, and certain of our other key officers and employees. As the top executive officer of
Boeing Wichita for almost ten years prior to the Boeing Acquisition, Mr. Turner gained extensive experience in
running our business and long-standing relationships with many high-level executives at Boeing, our largest customer.
We believe Mr. Turner s reputation in the aerospace industry and relationship with Boeing are critical elements in
maintaining and expanding our business. The loss of Mr. Turner or other key personnel could have a material adverse
effect on our business, operating results or financial condition. Our business also depends on our ability to continue to
recruit, train and retain skilled employees, particularly skilled engineers. The market for these resources is highly
competitive. We may be unsuccessful in attracting and retaining the engineers we need and, in such event, our
business could be materially adversely affected. The loss of the services of any key personnel, or our inability to hire
new personnel with the requisite skills, could impair our ability to provide products to our customers or manage our
business effectively.

We are subject to the requirements of the National Industrial Security Program Operating Manual for our facility
security clearance, which is a prerequisite for our ability to perform on classified contracts for the
U.S. government.

A DoD facility security clearance is required in order to be awarded and perform on classified contracts for the
DoD and certain other agencies of the U.S. government. We currently perform on several classified contracts, which
generated no revenues for the period from June 17, 2005 through December 29, 2005 and the nine months ended
September 28, 2006 and which we expect will generate less than 1% of our revenues for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2006. Spirit has obtained clearance at the secret level, and we are in the process of obtaining such
clearance for Spirit Holdings. Due to the fact that more than 50% of our voting equity is owned by a non-U.S. entity,
we will be required to operate in accordance
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with the terms and requirements of our Special Security Agreement, or SSA, with the DoD. If we were to violate the
terms and requirements of our SSA, the National Industrial Security Program Operating Manual, or any other
applicable U.S. government industrial security regulations (which may apply to us under the terms of our classified
contracts), we could lose our security clearance. We cannot assure you that we will be able to maintain our security
clearance. If for some reason our security clearance is invalidated or terminated, we may not be able to continue to
perform our present classified contracts and we would not be able to enter into new classified contracts, which could
adversely affect our revenues.

We derive a significant portion of our revenues from direct and indirect sales outside the United States and are
subject to the risks of doing business in foreign countries.

We derive a significant portion of our revenues from sales by Boeing and Airbus to customers outside the United
States. In addition, for the nine months ended September 28, 2006, direct sales to our non-U.S. customers accounted
for approximately 10% of our combined revenues (assuming the BAE Acquisition occurred on January 1, 2006). We
expect that our and our customers international sales will continue to account for a significant portion of our revenues
for the foreseeable future. As a result, we are subject to risks of doing business internationally, including:

changes in regulatory requirements;

domestic and foreign government policies, including requirements to expend a portion of program funds locally
and governmental industrial cooperation requirements;

fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates;

the complexity and necessity of using foreign representatives and consultants;
uncertainties and restrictions concerning the availability of funding credit or guarantees;
imposition of tariffs or embargoes, export controls and other trade restrictions;

the difficulty of management and operation of an enterprise spread over various countries;

compliance with a variety of foreign laws, as well as U.S. laws affecting the activities of U.S. companies
abroad; and

economic and geopolitical developments and conditions, including international hostilities, acts of terrorism and
governmental reactions, inflation, trade relationships and military and political alliances.

While these factors or the impact of these factors are difficult to predict, adverse developments of any one or more
of these factors could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations in the
future.

Our fixed-price contracts may commit us to unfavorable terms.

We provide most of our products and services through long-term contracts with Boeing and Airbus in which the
pricing terms are fixed based on certain production volumes. Accordingly, we bear the risk that increased or
unexpected costs may reduce our profit margins or cause us to sustain losses on these contracts. Other than certain
increases in raw material costs which can be passed on to Boeing and Airbus, we must fully absorb cost overruns,
notwithstanding the difficulty of estimating all of the costs we will incur in performing these contracts and in
projecting the ultimate level of sales that we may achieve. Our failure to anticipate technical problems, estimate
delivery reductions, estimate costs accurately or control costs during performance of a fixed-price contract may reduce
the profitability of a contract or cause a loss.

This is particularly a risk in relation to products such as the Boeing B787 for which we have not yet delivered
production articles and in respect of which our profitability at the contracted price depends on our being able to
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B787-8 pricing, we assumed that our development of new technologies and capabilities would reduce our production
costs over the life of the B787 program, thus maintaining or improving our margin on each B787 we produced. We
cannot assure you that our development of new technologies or capabilities will be successful or that we will be able
to reduce our B787 production costs over the life of the program. Our failure to reduce production costs as we have
anticipated could result in decreasing margins on the B787 during the life of the program.

Many of our other production cost estimates also contain pricing terms which anticipate cost reductions over time.
In addition, although we have entered into these fixed price contracts with Boeing and Airbus, they may nonetheless
seek to re-negotiate pricing with us in the future. Any such higher costs or re-negotiations could materially adversely
affect our profitability, margins and revenues.

We identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting.

We are not currently required to evaluate our internal control over financial reporting in the same manner that is
currently required of certain public companies, nor have we performed such an evaluation. Such an evaluation would
include documentation of internal control activities and procedures over financial reporting, assessment of design
effectiveness of such controls and testing of operating effectiveness of such controls which could result in the
identification of material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting.

Prior to the Boeing Acquisition, Boeing Wichita relied on Boeing s shared services group for certain business
processes associated with its financial reporting including treasury, income tax accounting and external reporting.
Since the Boeing Acquisition, we have had to develop these and other functional areas as a stand alone entity
including the necessary processes and internal control to prepare our financial statements on a timely basis in
accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Generally accepted auditing standards define a material weakness as a significant deficiency, or a combination of
significant deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or
interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected. In connection with our quarterly financial statements as
of and for the three months ended September 29, 2005, we concluded that we had three material weaknesses in our
internal control over financial reporting as described below.

We did not maintain effective internal control over the quarterly closing and consolidation process, including the
account reconciliation and review process and accuracy of certain accounts receivable transactions. Specifically,
controls over the reconciliation of the accounts receivable subsidiary ledger to its associated general ledger
balances, application of certain cash payments from customers and the investigation and resolution of customer
payment discrepancies were ineffective to appropriately record certain accounts receivable transactions. This
control deficiency resulted in adjustments to the accounts receivable, revenue and cash accounts. If not
remediated, this deficiency could result in a material misstatement of accounts receivable or related accounts.

We did not maintain effective controls over our income tax provision and the related balance sheet accounts.
Specifically, controls over the accuracy of the income tax provision and related deferred tax accounts as well as
our related financial statement disclosures in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, were
ineffective to appropriately apply SFAS No. 109 in evaluating our required valuation allowance and establishing
the tax basis of the acquired assets and assumed liabilities of the Boeing Acquisition. This control deficiency
resulted in adjustments to the deferred tax, valuation allowance and income tax provision accounts as well as our
related SFAS No. 109 financial statement disclosures.

We did not maintain effective controls over the accuracy and completeness of our interim financial statements of
our Tulsa, Oklahoma facility. Specifically, there were ineffective controls over the reconciliation of certain
general ledger accounts and the aggregation and reporting of those accounts
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into our financial statements which could have resulted in a material misstatement in our financial statements.

In connection with the issuance of our December 29, 2005 and June 29, 2006 financial statements during the third
quarter of 2006, we concluded that we had an additional material weakness in our internal control over financial
reporting as described below.

We did not maintain effective controls over our determination of the fair values ascribed for financial reporting
purposes to stock compensation awards granted to our employees and directors through June 29, 2006 in
accordance with SFAS No. 123(R), Share Based Payment. Specifically, we did not properly estimate the fair
values of these awards in determining the accuracy of our stock compensation expense under SFAS No. 123(R).
This control deficiency resulted in a restatement of our financial results as of December 29, 2005 and June 29,
2006 and for the periods then ended to adjust selling, general and administrative expenses, income taxes and
equity accounts as well as our earnings per share and stock compensation financial statement disclosures.

Our efforts to remediate the aforementioned deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting are described
further in Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

While we believe that these material weaknesses have been remediated, we cannot be certain that additional
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies will not develop or be identified. We are in the process of evaluating
our internal controls over the financial reporting processes of our recently acquired foreign operations and will
implement improvements where we consider them to be necessary. Any failure to maintain adequate internal control
over financial reporting or to implement required, new or improved controls, or difficulties encountered in their
implementation could cause us to report material weaknesses or other deficiencies in our internal control over
financial reporting and could result in a more than remote possibility of errors or misstatements in the restated
consolidated financial statements that would be material. Beginning with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal
year 2007, pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, our management will be required to assess the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting, and we will be required to have our independent
registered public accounting firm audit management s assessment and the operating effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting. If our management or our independent registered public accounting firm were to
conclude in their reports that our internal control over financial reporting was not effective, investors could lose
confidence in our reported financial information and the value of our stock could be adversely impacted.

We face a potential class action lawsuit which could result in substantial costs, diversion of management s
attention and resources and negative publicity.

Spirit, Boeing and Onex have been named as defendants in a lawsuit by certain former employees of Boeing who
assert several claims and purport to bring the case as a class action and collective action on behalf of all individuals
who were employed by Boeing (BCA) in Wichita, Kansas or Tulsa, Oklahoma within two years prior to the date of
the Boeing Acquisition and who were terminated by or not hired by Spirit. The plaintiffs seek damages and injunctive
relief for age discrimination, interference with ERISA rights, breach of contract and retaliation. Plaintiffs seek an
unspecified amount of compensatory damages and more than $1.5 billion in punitive damages. On November 15,
2006, the court granted the plaintiffs motion for conditional class certification and held that the plaintiffs may send
notice of the collective action to all former Boeing employees who were terminated by Boeing on or after January 1,
2002, were 40 years of age or older at the time of termination and were not hired by Spirit. Pursuant to the Asset
Purchase Agreement, we agreed to indemnify Boeing for damages resulting from the employment decisions that were
made by us with respect to former employees of Boeing Wichita which relate or allegedly relate to the involvement
of, or consultation with, employees of Boeing in such employment decisions. The lawsuit could result in substantial
costs, divert management s attention and resources from our operations
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and negatively affect our public image and reputation. An unfavorable outcome or prolonged litigation related to these
matters could materially harm our business.

We have a very limited operating history as a stand alone company and we may not be successful operating as a
stand alone company.

Prior to the Boeing Acquisition, Boeing Wichita was a division of Boeing. Boeing Wichita relied on Boeing for
many of its internal functions, including, without limitation, accounting and tax, payroll, technology support, benefit
plan administration and human resources. Although we have replaced most of these services either through
outsourcing or internal sources, we may not be able to perform any or all of these services in a cost-effective manner.
In addition, while we implement our plan to replace certain technology and systems support services provided by
Boeing, Boeing continues to provide such services to us under a transition services agreement which we entered into
at the time of the Boeing Acquisition. We cannot assure you that we will be able to successfully implement our plan to
replace the services that we continue to use and in particular, our Enterprise Resource Planning System, upon
expiration of the transition services agreement, which will expire in its entirety on June 15, 2007, unless otherwise
extended. As such, we cannot assure you that we will be successful in operating Boeing Wichita as a stand alone
company.

We do not own most of the intellectual property and tooling used in our business.

Our business depends on using certain intellectual property and tooling that we have rights to use under license
grants from Boeing. These licenses contain restrictions on our use of Boeing intellectual property and tooling and may
be terminated if we default under certain of these restrictions. Our loss of license rights to use Boeing intellectual
property or tooling would materially adversely affect our business. In addition, we must honor our contractual
commitments to our other customers related to intellectual property and comply with infringement laws in the use of
intellectual property. In the event we obtain new business from new or existing customers, we will need to pay
particular attention to these contractual commitments and any other restrictions on our use of intellectual property to
make sure that we will not be using intellectual property improperly in the performance of such new business. In the
event we use any such intellectual property improperly, we could be subject to an infringement claim by the owner or
licensee of such intellectual property. See Business Our Relationship with Boeing License of Intellectual Property.

In the future, our entry into new markets may require obtaining additional license grants from Boeing and/or from
other third parties. If we are unable to negotiate additional license rights on acceptable terms (or at all) from Boeing
and/or other third parties as the need arises, our ability to enter new markets may be materially restricted. In addition,
we may be subject to restrictions in future licenses granted to us that may materially restrict our use of third party
intellectual property.

Our success depends in part on the success of our research and development initiatives.

We spent approximately $85 million on research and development during the nine months ended September 28,
2006. The significant capital we expend on our research and development efforts may not create any new sales
opportunities or increases in productivity that are commensurate with the level of resources invested.

We are in the process of developing specific technologies and capabilities in pursuit of new business and in
anticipation of customers going forward with new programs, including the Boeing B787 and other programs which
have not yet been developed. For the period from June 17, 2005 through December 29, 2005, we spent approximately
$78 million on these activities. Work in connection with the Boeing B787 consisted of approximately 97% of our total
development costs during such period. If the Boeing B787 or any other such programs do not go forward or are not
successful, we may be unable to recover the costs incurred in anticipation of such programs and our profitability and
revenues may be materially adversely affected.
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The BAE Acquisition and any future business combinations, acquisitions or mergers expose us to risks, including
the risk that we may not be able to successfully integrate these businesses or achieve expected operating synergies.

The BAE Acquisition involves risks, including difficulties in integrating the operations and personnel of BAE
Aerostructures and the potential loss of key employees of BAE Aerostructures. We may not be able to satisfactorily
integrate the acquired business in a manner and a timeframe that achieves the cost savings and operating synergies
that we expect.

In addition, we actively consider strategic transactions from time to time. We evaluate acquisitions, joint ventures,
alliances or co-production programs as opportunities arise, and we may be engaged in varying levels of negotiations
with potential competitors at any time. We may not be able to effect transactions with strategic alliance, acquisition or
co-production program candidates on commercially reasonable terms or at all. If we enter into these transactions, we
also may not realize the benefits we anticipate. In addition, we may not be able to obtain additional financing for these
transactions.

The integration of companies that have previously been operated separately involves a number of risks, including,
but not limited to:

demands on management related to the increase in size after the transaction;
the diversion of management s attention from the management of daily operations to the integration of operations;
difficulties in the assimilation and retention of employees;

difficulties in the assimilation of different cultures and practices, as well as in the assimilation of geographically
dispersed operations and personnel, who may speak different languages;

difficulties combining operations that use different currencies or operate under different legal structures;

difficulties in the integration of departments, systems (including accounting systems), technologies, books and
records and procedures, as well as in maintaining uniform standards, controls (including internal accounting
controls), procedures and policies; and

constraints (contractual or otherwise) limiting our ability to consolidate, rationalize and/or leverage supplier
arrangements to achieve integration.

Consummating any acquisitions, joint ventures, alliances or co-production programs could result in the incurrence
of additional debt and related interest expense, as well as unforeseen contingent liabilities.

Risk Factors Related to our Capital Structure
The interests of our controlling stockholder may conflict with your interests.

Upon completion of this offering, the Onex entities will own 74,489,611 shares of our class B common stock. Our
class A common stock has one vote per share, while our class B common stock has ten votes per share on all matters
to be voted on by our stockholders. After this offering, the Onex entities will control approximately 92.1% of the
combined voting power of our outstanding common stock. Accordingly, and for so long as the Onex entities continue
to hold class B common stock that represents at least 10% of the total number of shares of common stock outstanding,
Onex will exercise a controlling influence over our business and affairs and will have the power to determine all
matters submitted to a vote of our stockholders, including the election of directors and approval of significant
corporate transactions such as amendments to our certificate of incorporation, mergers and the sale of all or
substantially all of our assets. Onex could cause corporate actions to be taken even if the interests of Onex conflict
with the interests of our other stockholders. This concentration of voting power could have the effect of deterring or
preventing a change in control of Spirit that might otherwise be beneficial to our stockholders. Gerald W. Schwartz,
the Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of Onex Corporation, owns shares representing a
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majority of the voting rights of the shares of Onex Corporation. See Principal and Selling Stockholders and
Description of Capital Stock.

Our substantial indebtedness could materially adversely affect our financial condition and our ability to operate

our business.

As a result of the Boeing Acquisition, we have a substantial amount of debt and debt servicing requirements. As of
September 28, 2006, we had total debt of approximately $723 million, including approximately $693 million of
borrowings under our senior secured credit facility and approximately $30 million of capital lease obligations. In
addition to our debt, we have less than $1 million of letters of credit outstanding. While we intend to use a portion of
the net proceeds of the offering to repay certain borrowings under our senior secured credit facility, we expect there to
be approximately $593 million outstanding under this facility following the application of the proceeds of the offering
as described in  Use of Proceeds. In addition, subject to restrictions in the credit agreement governing our senior
secured credit facility, we may incur additional debt.

Our substantial debt could have important consequences to you, including the following:

our ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, debt service
requirements or other general corporate purposes may be impaired;

we must use a significant portion of our cash flow for payments on our debt, which will reduce the funds
available to us for other purposes;

we are more vulnerable to economic downturns and adverse industry conditions and our flexibility to plan for, or
react to, changes in our business or industry is more limited;

our ability to capitalize on business opportunities and to react to competitive pressures, as compared to our
competitors, may be compromised due to our high level of debt; and

our ability to borrow additional funds or to refinance debt may be limited.
Servicing our debt will require a significant amount of cash. Our ability to generate sufficient cash depends on
numerous factors beyond our control, and we may be unable to generate sufficient cash flow to service our debt
obligations.

Our business may not generate sufficient cash flow from operating activities. We may need to obtain new credit
arrangements and other sources of financing in order to meet our current and future obligations and working capital
requirements and to fund our future capital expenditures. In addition, our ability to make payments on and to refinance
our debt and to fund planned capital expenditures will depend on our ability to generate cash in the future. We cannot
assure you of our future performance, which depends in part on general economic, financial, competitive, legislative,
regulatory and other factors that are beyond our control, including those described above under ~ Risk Factors Related
to our Business and Industry. Lower net revenues generally will reduce our cash flow.

If we are unable to generate sufficient cash flow to service our debt and meet our other commitments, we may
need to refinance all or a portion of our debt, sell material assets or operations or raise additional debt or equity
capital. We cannot assure you that we could effect any of these actions on a timely basis, on commercially reasonable
terms or at all, or that these actions would be sufficient to meet our capital requirements. In addition, the terms of our
existing or future debt agreements may restrict us from effecting certain or any of these alternatives.
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Restrictive covenants in our senior secured credit facility may restrict our ability to pursue our business strategies.
Our senior secured credit facility limits our ability, among other things, to:

incur additional debt or issue our preferred stock;

pay dividends or make distributions to our stockholders;

repurchase or redeem our capital stock;

make investments;

incur liens;

enter into transactions with our stockholders and affiliates;

sell certain assets;

acquire the assets of, or merge or consolidate with, other companies; and

incur restrictions on the ability of our subsidiaries to make distributions or transfer assets to us.

Our ability to comply with these covenants may be affected by events beyond our control, and any material
deviation from our forecasts could require us to seek waivers or amendments of covenants, alternative sources of
financing or reductions in expenditures. We cannot assure you that such waivers, amendments or alternative
financings could be obtained, or, if obtained, would be on terms acceptable to us.

In addition, the credit agreement governing our senior secured credit facility requires us to meet certain financial
ratios and restricts our ability to make capital expenditures or prepay certain other debt. We may not be able to
maintain these ratios, and the restrictions could limit our ability to plan for or react to market conditions or meet
extraordinary capital needs or otherwise restrict corporate activities.

If a breach of any covenant or restriction contained in our credit agreement governing our senior secured credit
facility results in an event of default, the lenders thereunder could discontinue lending, accelerate the related debt
(which would accelerate other debt) and declare all borrowings outstanding thereunder to be due and payable. In
addition, the lenders could terminate any commitments they had made to supply us with additional funds. In the event
of an acceleration of our debt, we may not have or be able to obtain sufficient funds to make any accelerated debt
payments, and we may not have sufficient capital to perform our obligations under our supply agreements.

We may sell more equity and reduce your ownership in Spirit Holdings.

Our business plan may require the investment of new capital, which we may raise by issuing additional equity
(including equity interests which may have a preference over your shares of class A common stock) or additional debt
(including debt securities and/or bank loans). However, this capital may not be available at all, or when needed, or
upon terms and conditions favorable to us. The issuance of additional equity in Spirit Holdings may result in
significant dilution of your shares of class A common stock. We may issue additional equity in connection with or to
finance subsequent acquisitions. Further, our subsidiaries could issue securities in the future to persons or entities
(including our affiliates) other than us or another subsidiary. This could materially adversely affect your investment in
us because it would dilute your indirect ownership interest in our subsidiaries.

Spirit Holdings certificate of incorporation and by-laws and our supply agreements with Boeing contain
provisions that could discourage another company from acquiring us and may prevent attempts by our
stockholders to replace or remove our current management.

Provisions of Spirit Holdings certificate of incorporation and by-laws may discourage, delay or prevent a merger
or acquisition that stockholders may consider favorable, including transactions in which you might otherwise receive a
premium for your shares. In addition, these provisions may frustrate or prevent
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any attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management by making it more difficult for
stockholders to replace or remove our current board of directors. These provisions include:

multi-vote shares of common stock, which are owned by the Onex entities and management stockholders;

advance notice requirements for nominations for election to the board of directors or for proposing matters that
can be acted on by stockholders at stockholder meetings; and

the authority of the board of directors to issue, without stockholder approval, up to 10 million shares of preferred
stock with such terms as the board of directors may determine and an additional 65,302,819 shares of class A
common stock (not including shares reserved for issuance upon conversion of outstanding shares of class B
common stock) and an additional 67,386,153 shares of class B common stock (not including shares issued but
subject to vesting requirements under our benefit plans).

In addition, our supply agreements with Boeing include provisions giving Boeing the ability to terminate the
agreements in the event any of certain disqualified persons acquire a majority of Spirit s direct or indirect voting power
or all or substantially all of Spirit s assets. See Description of Capital Stock, and Business Our Relationship with
Boeing.

Spirit Holdings is a controlled company within the meaning of the New York Stock Exchange rules and, as a
result, will qualify for, and intends to rely on, exemptions from certain corporate governance requirements.

Because the Onex entities will own more than 50% of the combined voting power of our common stock after the
completion of this offering, we will be deemed a controlled company under the rules of the New York Stock
Exchange, or NYSE. As a result, we will qualify for, and intend to rely upon, the controlled company exception to the
board of directors and committee composition requirements under the rules of the NYSE. Pursuant to this exception,
we will be exempt from rules that would otherwise require that Spirit Holdings board of directors be comprised of a
majority of independent directors (as defined under the rules of the NYSE), and that Spirit Holdings compensation
committee and corporate governance and nominating committee be comprised solely of independent directors, so long
as the Onex entities continue to own more than 50% of the combined voting power of our common stock. Spirit
Holdings board of directors consists of ten directors, five of whom qualify as independent. In addition, Spirit Holdings
compensation and corporate governance and nominating committees will not be comprised solely of independent
directors. See Management Executive Officers and Directors and  Committees of the Board of Directors.

Risk Factors Related to this Offering
There is no existing market for our class A common stock, and we do not know if one will develop to provide you
with adequate liquidity.

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for our class A common stock. An active trading market for
our class A common stock may not develop or be sustained after the offering. The lack of a public market may impair
the value of your shares and your ability to sell your shares at any time you wish to sell them.

Our stock price may be volatile, and you may not be able to sell your shares at or above the offering price.

The initial public offering price for our shares of class A common stock will be determined by negotiations
between the representatives of the underwriters and us. This price may not reflect the market price of our class A
common stock following this offering. You may be unable to resell the class A common stock you purchase at or
above the initial public offering price.
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The stock markets in general have experienced extreme volatility, often unrelated to the operating performance of
particular companies. Broad market fluctuations may materially adversely affect the trading price of our class A
common stock.

Price fluctuations in our class A common stock could result from general market and economic conditions and a
variety of other factors, including:

actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results;

changes in aerostructures pricing;

our competitors and customers announcements of significant contracts, acquisitions or strategic investments;
changes in our growth rates or our competitors and customers growth rates;

the timing or results of regulatory submissions or actions with respect to our business;

our inability to raise additional capital;

conditions of the aerostructure industry or in the financial markets or economic conditions in general; and

changes in stock market analyst recommendations regarding our class A common stock, other comparable
companies or the aerospace industry generally.
You will experience immediate and substantial dilution in the net tangible book value of your class A common
stock.

Based on our actual book value, the value of the shares of class A common stock you purchase in this offering
immediately will be less than the offering price you paid. This reduction in the value of your equity is known as
dilution. This dilution occurs in large part because our initial investors paid less than the initial public offering price
when they purchased their shares. If you purchase class A common stock in this offering, you will incur immediate
dilution of $19.57 per share, based on an assumed initial public offering price of $24.00 per share, the midpoint of the
range on the cover of this prospectus.

If a significant number of shares of our class A common stock are sold into the market following this offering, the
market price of our class A common stock could significantly decline, even if our business is doing well.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our class A common stock in the public market after this offering could
materially adversely affect the prevailing market price of our class A common stock.

Upon completion of this offering, we will have 52,083,334 shares of class A common stock and 75,671,517 shares
of class B common stock outstanding. Of these securities, the 52,083,334 shares of class A common stock offered
pursuant to this offering will be freely tradable without restriction or further registration under federal securities laws,
except to the extent shares are purchased in the offering by our affiliates. The 75,671,517 shares of class B common
stock and any class A common stock owned by our officers, directors and affiliates, as that term is defined in the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, are restricted securities under the Securities Act. Restricted
securities may not be sold in the public market unless the sale is registered under the Securities Act or an exemption
from registration is available.

In connection with this offering, we, each of our directors and executive officers and the Onex entities have
entered into lock-up agreements that prevent the sale of shares of our common stock for up to 180 days after the date
of this prospectus, subject to an extension in certain circumstances as set forth in the section entitled Underwriting.
Following the expiration of the lock-up period, the Onex entities will have the right, subject to certain conditions, to
require us to register the sale of these shares under the federal securities laws. If this right is exercised, holders of all
shares subject to a registration rights
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agreement will be entitled to participate in such registration. By exercising their registration rights, and selling a large
number of shares, these holders could cause the prevailing market price of our class A common stock to decline.
Approximately 75,671,517 shares of our common stock will be subject to a registration rights agreement upon
completion of this offering. See Shares Eligible for Future Sale and Description of Capital Stock Registration
Agreement.

Between May 19, 2007 and July 31, 2007, approximately 75,671,517 shares of class A common stock issuable
upon conversion of class B common stock will become eligible for sale in the public market, subject to the volume,
notice of sale, manner of sale and other restrictions of Rule 144 promulgated under the Securities Act. Furthermore, an
additional 6,942,330 shares of our class B common stock have been issued to members of our management pursuant
to our Executive Incentive Plan, Short Term Incentive Plan and Long Term Incentive Plan, which shares will remain
subject to vesting requirements following the offering. Of this amount, 464,943 shares granted under our Short Term
Incentive Plan and Long Term Incentive Plan will vest on February 17, 2007 if the recipients of such shares continue
to be employed by us at that time. See Management Benefit Plans Executive Incentive Plan, Short Term Incentive
Plan, and  Long Term Incentive Plan. If these vesting requirements are satisfied, additional shares of class A common
stock issuable upon conversion of the class B common stock will become eligible for sale in the public market one
year following the date on which the vesting requirements are satisfied, subject to the volume, notice of sale, manner
of sale and other restrictions of Rule 144 promulgated under the Securities Act or, if earlier, after the shares are
registered under the Securities Act.

In addition, under our Union Equity Participation Plan, as a result of this offering, we anticipate issuing
approximately 5,006,829 shares of class A common stock on or prior to March 15, 2007 pursuant to a registration
statement on Form S-8. These shares will become eligible for sale in the public market upon issuance.

If a trading market develops for our class A common stock, our employees, officers and directors may elect to sell
shares of our class A common stock issuable upon conversion of their shares of our class B common stock in the
market. Sales of a substantial number of shares of our class A common stock in the public market after this offering
could depress the market price of our class A common stock and impair our ability to raise capital through the sale of
additional equity securities.

We do not intend to pay cash dividends.

We do not intend to pay cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain all available funds
and any future earnings for use in the operation and expansion of our business and do not anticipate paying any cash
dividends in the foreseeable future. In addition, the terms of our current, as well as any future, financing agreements
may preclude us from paying any dividends. As a result, appreciation, if any, in the market value of our common
stock will be your sole source of potential financial gain for the foreseeable future.
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THE TRANSACTIONS

The Boeing Acquisition

In December 2004 and February 2005, an investor group led by Onex Partners LP and Onex Corporation formed
Spirit and Spirit Holdings, respectively, for the purpose of acquiring Boeing Wichita. On June 16, 2005, Spirit
acquired Boeing Wichita in a negotiated, arms-length transaction for a cash purchase price of approximately
$904 million and the assumption of certain liabilities, pursuant to an asset purchase agreement, dated as of
February 22, 2005, between Spirit and Boeing, or the Asset Purchase Agreement. Based on final working capital and
other factors specified in the Asset Purchase Agreement, a purchase price adjustment of $19 million was paid to Spirit
in the fourth quarter of 2005. In connection with the Boeing Acquisition, Boeing is required to make future payments
to Spirit in amounts of $45.5 million, $116.1 million and $115.4 million in 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively, in
payment for various tooling and capital assets built or purchased by Spirit. Spirit will retain usage rights and custody
of these assets for their remaining useful lives without compensation to Boeing. Boeing also contributed $30 million
to us to partially offset our costs of transition to a stand alone company.

The Asset Purchase Agreement contains customary representations, warranties and covenants. Pursuant to the
Asset Purchase Agreement, we are indemnified by Boeing, subject to specified exceptions, for losses arising from,
among other things:

breaches by Boeing of its representations, warranties, covenants and agreements contained in the Asset Purchase
Agreement;

damages relating to separating the portion of Boeing s Wichita facilities not acquired by us from the portion
acquired by us;

damages relating to noncompliance with certain laws by Boeing prior to closing;
liability for defective manufacture of products shipped by Boeing prior to closing;
certain environmental liabilities, as more fully described under Business Environmental Matters; and

tax liabilities for periods prior to closing.

Claims for indemnification are subject to an aggregate deductible equal to $10 million and may not exceed
$100 million, each subject to certain specified exceptions. Most claims for indemnification must be made by
December 16, 2006; claims for taxes and certain ERISA matters may be made until 30 days after the expiration of the
applicable statute of limitations; claims for matters relating to the title of the assets sold to us in the Boeing
Acquisition may be made until June 16, 2012; and certain representations, including those relating to broker or finder
fees and commissions, do not expire.

The Boeing Acquisition was financed through an equity investment of $375 million and borrowings of a
$700 million term loan B under our senior secured credit facilities. See ~ The Related Financing Transactions. Prior to
the closing of the Boeing Acquisition, neither Spirit nor Spirit Holdings had engaged in any business activities except
those incident to the acquisition of Boeing Wichita.

Prior to the completion of the Boeing Acquisition, Boeing Wichita was a division of Boeing and was not a
separate legal entity. Historically, Boeing Wichita functioned as an internal supplier of parts and assemblies to Boeing
airplane programs and had very few sales to third parties. It operated as a cost center of Boeing, meaning that it
recognized the cost of products manufactured for BCA programs but did not recognize any corresponding revenues
for those products. No intra-company pricing was established for the parts and assemblies that Boeing Wichita
supplied to Boeing. Revenues from sales to third parties were insignificant prior to the Boeing Acquisition, consisting
of less than $100,000 in each year from 2001 through 2004 and in the period from January 1, 2005 through June 16,
2005.
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Pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement, on the closing date of the Boeing Acquisition, Spirit and Boeing
entered into a series of agreements under which (1) Spirit has become Boeing s exclusive supplier of substantially all
of the parts and assemblies supplied to Boeing by Boeing Wichita as at June 16, 2005
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at pricing established under those agreements, (2) Spirit will be Boeing s exclusive supplier for the forward fuselage,
fixed and moveable leading wing edges and struts for Boeing s new B787 platform, at pricing set forth in the relevant
agreement and (3) Boeing has continued to provide to Spirit (in most cases on a transitional basis) certain technology
and system support services historically provided to Boeing Wichita by Boeing, at pricing established under those
agreements. See Business Our Relationship with Boeing.

Prior to the Boeing Acquisition, certain Boeing Wichita employees were represented by unions under Boeing s
labor agreements. After the closing of the Boeing Acquisition, Spirit employed most, but not all, of the employees of
Boeing Wichita on new terms and conditions of employment that were in most cases established by collective
bargaining between Spirit and the relevant labor unions. Spirit also established certain employee benefit and equity
incentive plans in connection with hiring Boeing Wichita employees. See Management Benefit Plans.

Our Principal Equity Investor

Onex Partners LP is an approximately $1.7 billion private equity fund established in 2003 by Onex Corporation.
Onex Partners LP provides committed capital for Onex-sponsored acquisitions. Onex Corporation is a diversified
company with annual consolidated revenues of approximately $16.5 billion and 136,000 employees. Onex s
subordinate voting shares are listed and traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol OCX . Onex is one of
Canada s largest companies with global operations in the service, manufacturing and technology industries. Onex has
extensive experience carving divisions out of large, multinational corporations and establishing them as stand alone
enterprises. Other Onex operating companies include Celestica Inc., Center for Diagnostic Imaging, Inc., Cineplex
Entertainment Limited Partnership, ClientLogic Corporation, Cosmetic Essence, Inc., Emergency Medical Services
Corporation, Radian Communication Services Corporation and Skilled Healthcare Group, Inc.

The Related Financing Transactions

On June 16, 2005, Spirit Holdings, as parent guarantor, Spirit, as a borrower, and Onex Wind Finance LP, an
indirect subsidiary of Spirit Holdings principal stockholder, or Onex Wind, as an additional borrower, entered into a
credit agreement with Citicorp North America, Inc., as collateral agent, administrative agent and documentation agent,
the lenders party thereto, Citigroup Global Markets Inc., as sole lead arranger and book runner, The Bank of Nova
Scotia and Royal Bank of Canada, as co-arrangers and co-syndication agents, The Bank of Nova Scotia, as issuing
bank, and Export Development Canada and Caisse de dépdt et placement du Québec, as co-documentation agents.
Pursuant to the terms of that credit agreement, the lenders thereunder provided us with available borrowings of
$875 million of senior secured credit facilities, comprised of a $175 million revolving credit facility, or the Revolver,
and a $700 million term loan B, or the Term Loan B, and together with the Revolver, the Senior Secured Credit
Facilities. Proceeds from the Term Loan B were used to consummate the Boeing Acquisition and pay fees and
expenses incurred in connection therewith and for working capital. We did not borrow under the Revolver at closing
and as of October 31, 2006, we had not borrowed under that facility, which may be used by us for working capital and
other general corporate purposes.

The obligations of the borrowers and guarantors under the Senior Secured Credit Facilities are secured by a first
priority security interest in substantially all of the borrowers and guarantors assets, including (1) all capital stock of
our direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries, as well as 65% of the capital stock of our direct and indirect foreign
subsidiaries and (2) all other tangible and intangible property and assets of the borrowers and guarantors. The Senior
Secured Credit Facilities contain standard covenants and mandatory prepayment requirements (including in respect of
the net cash proceeds received by us from this offering), as well as maximum total debt to an adjusted EBITDA,
which is the amount of our earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization expenses and other
specifically identified exclusions, and minimum interest coverage covenants.

Our Senior Secured Credit Facilities have been amended since the date of the Boeing Acquisition to, among other
things, facilitate Spirit s and its subsidiaries receipt of incentive arrangements under relevant Kansas statutes and
industrial revenue bond, or IRB, financing of equipment acquisitions and to permit us to acquire BAE Aerostructures.
We intend to further amend the Senior Secured Credit Facilities in
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connection with this offering. See Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations  Liquidity and Capital Resources.

On June 16, 2005, Onex Wind, as borrower, and Spirit Holdings, Spirit, Spirit AeroSystems Finance, Inc.,
3101447 Nova Scotia Company and Onex Wind Finance LLC, as guarantors, also entered into a secured senior
subordinated delayed draw term loan credit agreement with The Boeing Company, as agent, and the lenders party
thereto. Pursuant to the terms of that credit agreement, Boeing provided us with a $150 million senior subordinated
delayed draw facility, or the Senior Subordinated Credit Facility, which remained unfunded at closing and has not
been funded. As part of the amendment to the Senior Secured Credit Facilities to be entered into in connection with
this offering, we intend to obtain consent from our senior lenders to terminate the Senior Subordinated Credit Facility
upon completion of this offering.

In connection with each of our Senior Secured Credit Facilities and Senior Subordinated Credit Facility, we
established a structure under which Spirit borrows from an indirect subsidiary of Onex Wind any amounts which it
would otherwise borrow under the Senior Secured Credit Facilities. See Certain Relationships and Related Party
Transactions Other Related Party Transactions and Business Relationships. This structure will be eliminated pursuant
to the amendment to the senior secured credit facility that will be entered into in connection with this offering.

The BAE Acquisition

On April 1, 2006, through our wholly-owned subsidiary, Spirit Europe, we acquired BAE Aerostructures in a
negotiated, arms-length transaction for a cash purchase price of approximately $145.7 million and the assumption of
certain normal course liabilities (including accounts payable of approximately $57.8 million) financed with available
cash balances. Spirit Europe manufactures leading and trailing wing edges and other wing components for commercial
aircraft programs for Airbus and Boeing and produces various aerostructure components for certain Raytheon business
jets. The BAE Acquisition provides us with a foundation to increase future sales to Airbus, as Spirit Europe is a key
supplier of wing and flight control surfaces for the A320 platform, Airbus core single aisle program, and of wing
components for the A380 platform, one of Airbus most important new programs and the world s largest commercial
passenger aircraft. Under our supply agreements with Airbus, we supply most of our products for the life of the
aircraft program, including commercial derivative models, with pricing determined through 2010. For the A380, we
have a long-term supply contract with Airbus that covers a fixed number of units.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

We estimate that our net proceeds from the sale of 10,416,667 shares of class A common stock in this offering will
be approximately $229 million, based on an assumed initial public offering price of $24.00 per share, the midpoint of
the range on the cover of this prospectus, after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated
offering expenses payable by us. Each $1.00 increase or decrease in the assumed initial public offering price of
$24.00 per share, the midpoint of the range on the cover of the prospectus, would increase or decrease, as applicable,
the net proceeds to us by approximately $10 million, assuming the number of shares offered by us, as set forth on the
cover of this prospectus, remains the same and after deducting estimated underwriting discounts and commissions
payable by us. We will not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of shares by the selling stockholders.

We intend to use the net proceeds as follows:

approximately $100 million to repay debt outstanding under our Term Loan B under our senior secured credit
facility; and

the balance to pay a portion of the obligations which will become due upon the closing of this offering under our
Union Equity Participation Plan.

We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of shares by the selling stockholders.

An affiliate of Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC, one of the representatives of the underwriters, is a lender
under, and will receive a portion of the net proceeds used to repay debt under, our senior secured credit facility.

Proceeds from the Term Loan B were used to consummate the Boeing Acquisition and pay fees and expenses
incurred in connection therewith and for working capital.

The Term Loan B bears interest at a rate equal to the sum of LIBOR plus the applicable margin (as defined below)
or, at our option, the alternate base rate, which will be the highest of (x) the Citicorp North America, Inc. prime rate,
(y) the certificate of deposit rate, plus 0.50% and (z) the federal funds rate plus 0.50%, plus the applicable margin. The
applicable margin is 2.25% per annum on the portion of the Term Loan B that bears interest at LIBOR and 1.25% on
the portion of the Term Loan B that bears interest at the alternate base rate. The Term Loan B matures on
December 31, 2011.

See Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Liquidity and
Capital Resources for additional information regarding our outstanding debt.
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DIVIDEND POLICY
We currently intend to retain any future earnings to support our operations and to fund the development and
growth of our business. In addition, the payment of dividends by us to holders of our common stock is limited by our
credit facilities. Our future dividend policy will depend on the requirements of financing agreements to which we may
be a party. We do not intend to pay cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. Any future
determination to pay dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend upon, among other
factors, our results of operations, financial condition, capital requirements and contractual restrictions.
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CAPITALIZATION
The following table sets forth as of September 28, 2006:

our consolidated capitalization on an actual basis,
our consolidated capitalization on a pro forma basis to give effect to the sale of 10,416,667 shares of class A
common stock by us in this offering at an assumed initial public offering price of $24.00 per share, the midpoint
of the range on the cover of the prospectus, and the application of those proceeds as described in Use of Proceeds.
You should read this table together with our unaudited consolidated pro forma financial information included
elsewhere in this prospectus. For additional information regarding our outstanding debt, see Management s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Liquidity and Capital Resources.
As of September 28, 2006
Actual Pro Forma(l)

(Dollars in millions)

(Unaudited)
Long-term debt, including current portion:

Revolving credit facility(2) $ $
Term loan 693.0 593.0
Capital leases and other debt 29.5 29.5

Total senior debt 722.5 622.5
Subordinated secured delayed draw credit facility

Total debt $ 722.5 $ 622.5

Shareholders equity
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value per share, 10,000,000 shares authorized; nil
shares issued and outstanding
Class A common stock, $0.01 par value per share, 200,000,000 shares
authorized; nil shares issued and outstanding, actual; 52,083,334 shares
issued and outstanding, as adjusted 0.5
Class B common stock, $0.01 par value per share, 150,000,000 shares
authorized; 124,280,514 shares issued and outstanding, actual;

82,613,847 shares issued and outstanding, as adjusted 1.2 0.8
Additional paid-in capital 452.5 681.4
Accumulated other comprehensive income 21.5 21.5
Accumulated deficit “4.1) (282.1)

Total shareholders equity 471.1 422.1

Total capitalization $ 1,193.6 $ 1,044.6

(1) Each $1.00 increase or decrease in the assumed initial public offering price of $24.00 per share, the midpoint of
the range on the cover of the prospectus, would increase or decrease, as applicable, the amount of pro forma
additional paid-in capital, total stockholders equity and total capitalization by approximately $10 million,
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assuming the number of shares offered by us, as set forth on the cover of this prospectus, remains the same and
after deducting the estimated underwriting discounts and commissions payable by us.

(2) The revolving credit facility provides for availability of borrowings and issuances of letters of credit for up to
$175.0 million. As of September 28, 2006, we had $175.0 million of availability under the revolving credit
facility, net of $0.3 million of letters of credit outstanding.
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DILUTION

If you invest in our class A common stock, your interest will be diluted immediately to the extent of the difference
between the public offering price per share of our class A common stock and the pro forma net tangible book value
per share of our common stock after this offering.

As of September 28, 2006, our net tangible book value, determined on a pro forma basis as described below, was
$418.2 million, or $3.36 per share of class A common stock and class B common stock (together, our common stock).
Pro forma net tangible book value represents the amount of our total assets (excluding intangible assets), less our total
liabilities, divided, in the case of net tangible book value per share, by the pro forma number of shares outstanding
giving effect to the 3-for-1 stock split that occured on November 16, 2006.

After giving effect to our sale of 10,416,667 shares of class A common stock in this offering, based on an assumed
initial public offering price of $24.00 per share, the midpoint of the range on the cover of this prospectus, and after
deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us, our adjusted pro
forma net tangible book value at September 28, 2006 would have been approximately $596.7 million, or $4.43 per
share of our common stock. This represents an immediate increase in pro forma net tangible book value of $1.07 per
share to our existing stockholders and an immediate net tangible book value dilution of $19.57 per share to new
investors purchasing shares in this offering. The following table illustrates this dilution:

Assumed initial public offering price per share $24.00
Pro forma net tangible book value per share at September 28, 2006 $ 3.36
Increase in pro forma net tangible book value per share attributable to new investors 1.07
Pro forma adjusted net tangible book value per share after this offering 4.43
Dilution per share to new investors $19.57

The following table summarizes, as of September 28, 2006, as adjusted to give effect to this offering, the
differences between the number of shares of our common stock purchased from us, the total consideration paid to us
and the average price per share paid by our existing stockholders and by the new investors purchasing class A
common stock in this offering. The calculation is based on an assumed initial public offering price of $24.00 per
share, the midpoint of the range on the cover of this prospectus, before deducting underwriting discounts and
commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us.

Shares Purchased Total Consideration
Average
Price
Number Percent Amount Percent Per Share
Existing stockholders 124,280,514(1) 923% $380,302,267 60.3% $ 3.06
New investors 10,416,667 77%  $250,000,008 397% $ 24.00
Total 134,697,181 100% $630,302,275 $ 100%

(1) Includes 10,247,595 shares of class B common stock subject to vesting requirements under our benefit plans of
which 3,305,265 shares of class B common stock will vest on the offering.
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If the underwriters exercise their over-allotment option in full, our existing stockholders would own approximately
55.4% of the total number of shares of our common stock outstanding after this offering and would have paid
approximately 60.3% of the total consideration paid to us for shares of our common stock.

We may choose to raise additional capital due to market conditions or strategic considerations even if we believe
we have sufficient funds for our current or future operating plans. To the extent additional capital is raised through the
sale of equity or convertible debt securities, the issuance of these securities could result in further dilution to our
stockholders.
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UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA
The following unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements present Spirit Holdings financial position
and results of operations adjusted for the Boeing Acquisition, the sale of 10,416,667 shares of class A common stock
pursuant to this offering and the application of the proceeds therefrom as described in Use of Proceeds. Boeing
Wichita is the predecessor entity of Spirit Holdings for the periods prior to the Boeing Acquisition.
The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements include:

the pro forma consolidated balance sheet as of September 28, 2006, assuming this offering occurred on
September 28, 2006 and the proceeds were applied as described in  Use of Proceeds;

the pro forma consolidated statement of operations for the nine months ended September 28, 2006, assuming this
offering occurred on January 1, 2005 and the proceeds were applied as described in Use of Proceeds; and

the pro forma consolidated statement of operations for the fiscal year ended December 29, 2005 assuming the
Boeing Acquisition, this offering and the application of proceeds as described in Use of Proceeds all occurred on
January 1, 2005.

Prior to the completion of the Boeing Acquisition, Spirit was a division of Boeing and was not a separate legal
entity. No intra-company pricing was established for the parts and assemblies that Boeing Wichita supplied to Boeing,
with all transactions with Boeing conducted on a non-cash basis. As a consequence, only minimal external revenues
were recorded by Boeing Wichita. Following the Boeing Acquisition, we adopted contract accounting. Additionally,
we reduced our labor, pension and fringe benefit costs as a result of the Boeing Acquisition. Results of operations
have been adjusted to give effect to these matters, as well as the financing costs of the Boeing Acquisition and new
depreciation and amortization rates which reflect a preliminary valuation of the net assets acquired in accordance with
purchase accounting.

Finally, certain adjustments have been made to reflect Spirit Holdings existence as a stand alone company,
including service fees payable to Onex, taxes and recalculation of accreted income related to Spirit s non-interest
bearing long-term receivable from Boeing in the aggregate amount of $277 million due in 2007, 2008 and 2009
attributable to the acquisition of title of various tooling and other capital assets.

The pro forma adjustments are described in detail in the notes to the pro forma statements of operations and are
based on available information and assumptions that management believes are reasonable. The pro forma statements
of operations do not purport to be indicative of our future results of operations or results of operations that would have
actually occurred had the Boeing Acquisition and this offering been consummated on January 1, 2005.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with Selected Consolidated
Historical Financial Data,  Use of Proceeds,  Capitalization, = The Transactions, = Management s Discussion and Anal
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and the consolidated historical financial statements and related notes

included elsewhere in this prospectus.
34
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Spirit AeroSystems Holdings, Inc.
Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable net
Inventory net

Prepaids and other assets

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Other assets

Total assets

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Current maturities of debt

Income taxes

Stock issuance liability

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Advance payments
Other liabilities
Shareholders Equity
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 350,000,000
shares authorized
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Accumulated deficit

Total shareholders equity

Total liabilities and shareholders equity
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September 28, 2006
Pro Forma
Adjustment
for the
Offering
September 28, 2006  Transactions
(Unaudited)
(Dollars in millions)
189.0 $ (25.0)(a)
215.7
731.7
17.4
1,153.8 (25.0)
716.7
464.9 (3.8)(b)
2,3354 $ (28.8)
501.0 $
23.2
46.1
120.2(c)
570.3 120.2
699.3 (100.0)(d)
500.0
94.7
1.2 0.1(e)
452.5 228.9(e)
21.5
4.1) (278.0)(f)
471.1 (49.0)
2,3354 $ (28.8)

Pro Forma
September 28,
2006

$ 164.0
215.7

731.7

17.4

1,128.8
716.7
461.1

$ 2,306.6

$ 501.0
23.2

46.1

120.2

690.5
599.3
500.0

94.7

1.3

681.4

21.5
(282.1)

422.1

$ 2,306.6
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Spirit AeroSystems Holdings, Inc.

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations
For the Nine Months Ended September 28, 2006

Pro Forma
Adjustment Pro Forma
for the Nine Months
Nine Months Ended Offering Ended
September 28, 2006  Transactions(f) September 28,
2006
(Unaudited)
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)
Net sales $ 2,355.9 $ $ 2,355.9
Cost of sales 1,926.7 1,926.7
Selling, general and administrative 160.0 (1.5)(g) 158.5
Research and development 85.1 85.1
Total costs and expenses 2,171.8 (1.5) 2,170.3
Operating income 184.1 1.5 185.6
Interest expense and financing fee
amortization (34.8) 6.2(d) (28.6)
Interest income 20.9 20.9
Other income, net 3.6 3.6
Income before income taxes 173.8 7.7 181.5
Provision for income taxes (87.6) (h) (87.6)
Net income $ 86.2 $ 7.7 $ 93.9
Net income per share, basic $ 0.76 $ 0.70(1)
Shares used in per share calculation, basic 1139 133.4
Net income per share, diluted $ 0.71 $ 0.67(1)
Shares used in per share calculation, diluted 121.7 139.8
(a) Cash and cash equivalents
The pro forma adjustment to Cash and cash equivalents is attributable to the following items:
Pro Forma
September 28,
2006
Net proceeds from offering $ 229.0
Cash portion of Union Equity Participation Plan payout (150.0)
Prepayment of long-term debt (100.0)
Termination of intercompany agreement with Onex Partners Manager, L.P. 4.0)
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Total pro forma adjustment to Cash and cash equivalents $ (25.0)

(b) The pro forma adjustment to Other assets reflects a write-off of the imputed present value of Spirit s proportionate
share of the subordinated delayed draw credit facility with Boeing for $3.6 million less $1.4 million of
accumulated amortization. See Liquidity and Capital Resources . This adjustment also includes a $1.6 million
write-off of a proportionate share of deferred financing fees associated with the $100.0 million prepayment of
long-term debt.

(c) The pro forma adjustment to Stock issuance liability represents the value on the date of the offering of the stock
portion of the Union Equity Participation Plan payout (5,006,829 x $24.00) that would be recorded as a liability
until the date the shares are actually issued which would be approximately four months after the offering date.

(d) The pro forma adjustment to Interest expense primarily reflects a $6.0 million interest expense savings associated
with the repayment of approximately $100 million of Term Loan B under the Senior
36
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Secured Credit Facilities (assuming interest at LIBOR plus applicable margin, as described in Use of Proceeds as
well as the assumed interest rates used in calculating the Pro forma Acquisition Adjustments). If interest rates

were to change by 0.125%, the total interest would increase (decrease) by approximately $0.6 million for the nine
months ended September 28, 2006. In addition, the interest expense adjustment reflects the elimination of the
structure under which Spirit borrows from an indirect subsidiary of Onex Wind, as outlined in Certain
Relationships and Related Party Transactions Other Related Party Transactions and Business Relationships . This
adjustment also reflects $0.2 million of deferred financing fees that have been written off proportionate to the

debt pre-payment.

(e) The pro forma adjustment to Common stock and Additional paid-in capital reflects the increase in shares from
the offering (10,416,667 shares issued or $0.1 million increase in Common stock and $229.0 million in
Additional paid-in capital based on net proceeds of $21.98 per share).

() Accumulated deficit
The pro forma adjustments to Accumulated deficit are as follows:

Pro Forma
September 28, 2006

Stock compensation charge for Union Equity Participation Plan $ (270.2)
Termination of intercompany agreement with Onex Partners Manager, L.P. (4.0)
Writeoff of deferred financing fees proportionate to debt prepayment (1.6)
Writeoff of Boeing delayed draw credit facility (see discussion in Management s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Liquidity
and Capital Resources ) 2.2)

Total pro forma adjustment to Accumulated deficit $ (278.0)

As these adjustments are non-recurring in nature, they have not been included in the Pro-Forma Consolidated
Statement of Operations.

(g) The pro forma adjustment to Selling, general and administrative represents service fee credits of $1.5 million that
will not be incurred by the Company after termination of the outstanding intercompany agreement with Onex
Partners Manager, L.P.

(h) As of September 28, 2006, the Company continued to have a full valuation allowance of its deferred tax asset
therefore the pro forma adjustments would have no impact on Provision for income taxes.

(1) Included in the Net income (loss) per share calculation are the 10,416,667 shares from this offering and the
5,006,829 shares for the Union Equity Participation Plan, both assumed to have been issued.
Overview of Pro Forma Consolidated Statement of Operations Adjustments for the Boeing Acquisition
The following unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of operations data gives effect to adjustments that we
believe are (1) directly attributable to the Boeing Acquisition, (2) expected to have a continuing impact on the
business and (3) factually supportable, as follows:
adjustments for revenues recorded as a stand alone business, based on actual deliveries for the period prior to the
Boeing Acquisition with pricing as determined under our supply agreements with Boeing, rather than as a captive
division whose costs are absorbed;
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adjustments to compensation and benefits as a result of new union wage rates, incentive programs and benefit
plans that became effective at the time of the Boeing Acquisition;

adjustments to interest, depreciation and amortization expense resulting from the $700 million Term Loan B,
valuation of the assets under purchase accounting and the allocation of negative goodwill; and
37
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adjustments for certain costs, including service fees payable to Onex, taxes and the recalculation of accreted
income related to Spirit s non-interest bearing long-term receivable from Boeing in the aggregate amount of
$277 million.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of operations is based upon management s current estimate of, and
good faith assumptions regarding, the adjustments arising from the transactions described above and is based upon
currently available information.

Pro forma adjustments for the Boeing Acquisition include the effects of new contractual arrangements if the
amounts are factually supportable, directly attributable to the Boeing Acquisition and expected to have a continuing
impact on the statement of operations. In accordance with Regulation S-X, the following unaudited pro forma
consolidated statement of operations data does not give effect to new distribution or cost sharing agreements,
agreements with management, or compensation or benefit plans. In accordance with Regulation S-X, we also have not
included any pro forma adjustments reflecting efficiencies from the transaction, including termination of employees,
closure of plants and other restructuring changes. The unaudited pro forma statement of operations data is based on
the historical financial statements of Boeing Wichita for the period from January 1, 2005 through June 16, 2005, the
historical financial statements of Spirit Holdings for the period from February 7, 2005 through December 29, 2005,
and other available information and certain management assumptions. The unaudited pro forma consolidated
statement of operations data gives effect to the Boeing Acquisition as if it had occurred on January 1, 2005.
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Net sales(3)
Cost of sales (Spirit
Holdings)/
Cost of products
transferred
(Predecessor)
Provision of energy
services, net
SG&A, R&D, other
period costs(4)
Operating income (loss)
Interest expense and
financing fee
amortization
Interest income
Other income, net
Provision for income
taxes

Net income (loss)

Net loss per share, basic
Shares used in per share
calculation, basic

Net loss per share,
diluted

Shares used in per share
calculation, diluted
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SPIRIT AEROSYSTEMS HOLDINGS, INC.
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 29, 2005

Spirit
Holdings
Predecessor Predecessor Actual
Results
Actual . Spirit
Results Pro Forma Period From Holdings
Period Period February 7, Pro Forma
From From 2005
January 1, Pro Forma January 1, through Year
2005 Adjustments 2005 g Ended
through through December 29, December 29,
June 16, . .y Labor June 16,
2005 (I) Acquisition (IT) (11T 2005 2005(1)(2) 2005
(restated)
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)
$ $ 1,1653 § $ 1,165.3 $ 1,207.6  $ 23729
1,163.9 (141.3) (31.4) 991.2 1,056.4 2,047.6
0.2) 0.2) (0.2)
90.7 97.9 188.6 219.0 407.6
(1,254.4) 1,208.7 314 (14.3) (67.8) (82.1)
(19.9) (19.9) (25.5) (45.4)
15.4 15.4
8.2 8.2 1.3 9.5
17.4) (17.4) (13.7) (31.1)
$(1,2544) $ 1,1796 $ 314  $ 434) $ (90.3) $ (133.7)
N/A N/A N/A N/A $ (0.80) $ (1.01)
N/A N/A N/A N/A 113.5 132.6
N/A N/A N/A N/A $ (0.80) $ (1.01)
N/A N/A N/A N/A 113.5 132.6
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(1) Spirit Holdings was formed on February 7, 2005 as a holding company of Spirit. Spirit s operations commenced on
June 17, 2005, following the closing of the Boeing Acquisition.

(2) See Note 2 of our restated consolidated financial statements for further information regarding the restatement.

(3) For purposes of the Pro Forma Net Sales adjustment for the period from January 1, 2005 through June 16, 2005,
sales were recorded upon the transfer of airplane units to Boeing. After the Boeing Acquisition, we adopted the use
of contract accounting for profit recognition. The pro forma statement of operations data presented for the period
from January 1, 2005 through June 16, 2005 does not include an adjustment to convert Boeing Wichita s historical
accounting methodology to contract accounting.

(4) Included in actual SG&A, R&D, other period costs is the non-cash stock compensation charge of $22.1 million for
the period ended June 16, 2005 and $34.7 million for the period from February 7, 2005 through December 29,
2005.

See notes to the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of operations.
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Pro Forma Adjustment for the

Spirit Holdings Offering Transactions Pro Forma as
Pro Period Adjusted
Forma Year From January 1, 2005
Ended through Year Ended
December 29, December 29,
2005(a) December 29, 2005(b) 2005

Net sales $ 2,372.9 $ $ 2,372.9
Cost of sales/products
transferred 2,047.4 2,047.4
SG&A, R&D, other period
costs 407.6 (2.0)(c) 405.6

Operating income (loss) (82.1) 2.0 (80.1)
Interest expense and financing
fee amortization (45.4) 7.1(d) (38.3)
Interest income 154 154
Other income, net 9.5 9.5
Provision for (recovery of)
income taxes (31.1) (31.1)

Net income (loss) $ (133.7) $ 9.1 $ (124.6)
Net income (loss) per share,
basic $ (1.01) $ (0.94)(e)
Shares used in per share
calculation, basic 132.6 132.6
Net income (loss) per share,
diluted $ (1.01) $ (0.94)(e)
Shares used in per share
calculation, diluted 132.6 132.6

(a) Includes the Predecessor pro forma adjustments for the Boeing Acquisition and Labor for the period from
January 1, 2005 through June 16, 2005.

(b) Costs associated with the offering that are excluded from the pro forma income statement due to their
non-recurring nature:

Stock compensation charge for Union Equity Participation Plan $ (270.2)

Termination of intercompany agreement with Onex Partners Manager, L.P. (4.0)

Writeoff of deferred financing fees proportionate to debt prepayment (2.0)

Writeoff of Boeing delayed draw credit facility (see discussion in Management s Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Liquidity and Capital Resources ) (2.5)
Total non-recurring adjustments $ (278.7)
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(c) The pro forma adjustment to SG&A, R&D, other period costs represents a service fee of $2.0 million for the
period ended December 29, 2005 that will not be incurred by the Company after termination of the outstanding
intercompany agreement with Onex Partners Manager, L.P.

(d) The pro forma adjustment to Interest expense reflects a $4.0 million interest expense savings associated with the
repayment of approximately $100 million of Term Loan B under the Senior Secured Credit Facilities (assuming
interest at LIBOR plus applicable margin, as described in Use of Proceeds ). In addition, the interest expense
adjustment reflects the elimination of the structure under which Spirit borrows from an indirect subsidiary of Onex
Wind, as outlined in Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions Other Related Party Transactions and
Business Relationships . This adjustment also reflects $0.3 million of deferred financing fees that have been written
off proportionate to the debt prepayment.

(e) Included in the Net income (loss) per share calculations are the 10,416,667 shares from this offering and the
5,006,829 shares for the Union Equity Participation Plan, both assumed to have been issued.

See notes to the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of operations.
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NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA
Set forth below are notes that describe the assumptions underlying the adjustments to the pro forma consolidated

statement of operations relating to the Boeing Acquisition.

(D Presentation of Historical Audited Statement of Operations Data for the Period from January 1, 2005

through June 16, 2005

The historical financial data is presented to reflect the operation of Boeing Wichita as a cost center of BCA,
not a separate legal entity. Historically, Boeing Wichita was an internal supplier of parts and assemblies for the
B737, B747, B757, B767 and B777 airplane programs of BCA, with few sales to third party customers. Boeing
Wichita included the manufacturing operations of BCA located in Wichita, Kansas; Tulsa, Oklahoma and
McAlester, Oklahoma along with certain shared assets and operations of Boeing s Shared Services Group. This
historical financial information reflects the actual financial statements of Boeing Wichita. Certain amounts have
been allocated from Boeing s consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement, Spirit acquired Boeing Wichita (including the assumption of
certain liabilities). Boeing Wichita is the predecessor entity of Spirit Holdings for the periods prior to the Boeing
Acquisition. The historical financial statements for the period from January 1, 2005 through June 16, 2005 present
the associated historical assets, liabilities and operating costs of Boeing Wichita.

Since Boeing Wichita was operated as a cost center, costs incurred and allocated to Boeing Wichita were
absorbed by BCA and revenues were not recorded in Boeing Wichita s historical financial statements. Cost of
products transferred includes manufacturing labor, material and non-labor and site overhead costs. Fringe benefit
costs are allocated to the cost of products transferred through the fringe rate as a percentage of labor dollars. Fringe
costs include elements such as vacation, holiday, sick leave, medical, pension and postretirement medical, as
described in the notes to our historical financial statements. Costs administered by Boeing are not allocated to the
cost of products transferred.

Transactions with Boeing were conducted on a non-cash basis, and generally involved performance under
intra-company arrangements between Boeing Wichita and Boeing.

Certain costs were incurred by Boeing on behalf of Boeing Wichita. To the extent practical, these costs were
discretely transferred to Boeing Wichita, but in some cases, an allocation methodology was used to transfer the
costs to Boeing Wichita. Management believes that these allocations are reasonable, but may not be indicative of
costs that would have been incurred had Boeing Wichita been operated on a stand alone basis. These costs fall into
the following three major categories and all such costs have been included in Boeing Wichita s historical financial
statements.

First, the historical financial statements include costs directly related to the activities of Boeing Wichita, which
were incurred by Boeing and transferred to Boeing Wichita for administrative purposes, including payroll,
accounts payable, travel and employee benefits such as pension costs, and medical coverage. These costs are
primarily included in cost of products transferred and the balance is included in SG&A, R&D and other period
costs.

Second, costs incurred by Boeing on behalf of Boeing Wichita represented the purchase of parts from Boeing
that are incorporated into the products of Boeing Wichita. The cost of these parts is treated the same as the cost of
parts acquired from third parties and is included in cost of products transferred.
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Third, costs incurred by Boeing on behalf of Boeing Wichita are either general and administrative or relate to
support services provided by Boeing for the benefit of Boeing Wichita. These costs, except for those identified as
general and administrative, are included in cost of products transferred.
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(IT) Boeing Acquisition
The Boeing Acquisition represents the impact of the following items:

(1) Net Sales.
The adjustments to produce total net sales are outlined as follows:

1/1/2005-
6/16/2005
Program Revenue at Supply Agreement Prices(1) $ 1,073.3
Other Sales at Supply Agreement Prices(1) 474
B787 Revenue(1) 21.3
Spares Sales at Supply Agreement Prices(1) 33.7
Amortization of Intangibles and Depreciation of Tooling Related to Exclusivity Agreement(2) (10.4)
Total Revenue $ 1,165.3

(1) This adjustment reflects the application of the contractually-determined pricing from our supply agreements with
Boeing to the actual products and services transferred to Boeing during the period from January 1, 2005 through
June 16, 2005. See Business Our Relationship with Boeing.

(2) This adjustment reflects the reduction of revenue related to the amortization of intangibles and tooling
depreciation in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force, or EITF, No. 01-3, Accounting in a Business
Combination for Deferred Revenue of an Acquiree and EITF No. 01-9, Accounting for Consideration Given by a
Vendor to a Customer (including a Reseller of the Vendor s Products).

(i1) Cost of Sales/ Costs of Products Transferred.
The adjustments to cost of products transferred are as follows:

1/1/2005-

6/16/2005
B787 Reclassification(1) $ (56.2)
G&A Reclassification(2) (38.3)
Capitalized Tooling(3) (18.5)
Depreciation Expense(4) (28.3)
Total $ (141.3)

(1) Cost of products transferred has been reduced by $56.2 million to reflect the reclassification of certain
B787-related cost of products transferred as SG&A to conform to Spirit s classification. Historically, Boeing
Wichita included these expenses in cost of products transferred. Spirit classifies these expenses as SG&A.

(2) Cost of products transferred has been reduced by $38.3 million to eliminate costs associated with accounting,
human resources, payroll, security and other period expenses that were historically recorded by Boeing Wichita

Table of Contents 68



Edgar Filing: Spirit AeroSystems Holdings, Inc. - Form S-1/A

as a cost of products transferred. These costs were reclassified as SG&A to conform to Spirit s classification.

(3) Cost of products transferred has been reduced by $18.5 million to eliminate the costs associated with tooling
expenses. Historically, Boeing Wichita expensed certain tooling assets. Spirit capitalized these tooling assets after
the closing of the Boeing Acquisition.

(4) Cost of products transferred was reduced for depreciation expense of $28.3 million due to the lower asset values
resulting from the Boeing Acquisition, including the recognition and allocation of negative goodwill.
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(ii1) SG&A, R&D and Other Period Costs.
SG&A, R&D and other period costs are outlined as follows:

1/1/2005-

6/16/2005
B787 Reclassification(1) $ 56.2
SG&A Reclassification(2) 38.3
Other(3) 34
Total $ 97.9

(1) SG&A has been increased by $56.2 million to reflect the reclassification of certain B787-related cost of products
transferred as SG&A to conform to Spirit s classification of costs. Historically, Boeing Wichita included these
costs in cost of products transferred. Spirit classifies these expenses as SG&A.

(2) SG&A has been adjusted by $38.3 million to add costs associated with accounting, human resources, payroll,
security and other period costs that were reclassified from costs of products transferred to SG&A to conform to
Spirit s classification of costs.

(3) Other period costs were increased by $3.4 million, including (a) amortization of favorable leasehold interest and
other identified intangibles resulting from the Boeing Acquisition and (b) the Onex service fee ($2 million on an
annual basis, prorated for five and a half months).

(iv) Interest Expense and Financing Fee Amortization. The pro forma adjustments to interest expense and
financing fee amortization are based on the borrowings to finance the Boeing Acquisition as presented below:

1/1/2005-

6/16/2005
Term Loan B(1) $ 17.5
Amortization of Loan Fees(2) 2.4
Interest Expense and Financing Fee Amortization $ 19.9

(1) The Term Loan B s interest rate was determined as LIBOR plus 225 basis points. The following rates were used
for calculating the interest for the Term Loan B during the months set forth below:

Interest
Rate
January 2005 5.00%
February 2005 5.17%
March 2005 5.37%
April 2005 5.46%
May 2005 5.59%
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June 2005 5.68%

The effect of a 0.125% change in the interest rate on the Term Loan B would increase or decrease annual pro
forma interest expense by $0.8 million.

(2) Deferred financing amortization expense for the period from January 1, 2005 through June 16, 2005 is based on
monthly amortization of deferred financing fees incurred due to the debt borrowed to fund the Boeing
Acquisition.

(v) Other Income and Expense, Net. Other income and expense, net has been adjusted to account for the
estimated accretion income related to Spirit s non-interest bearing long-term receivable from Boeing in the
aggregate amount of $277 million payable in 2007, 2008 and 2009 attributable to the acquisition of title of various
tooling and other capital assets.
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(vi) Income Taxes. The pro forma tax adjustment of $17.4 million to income taxes reflects the tax effect of the
pro forma adjustment to operating income. Tax expense was based on the following assumptions: (1) all actual
temporary and permanent book versus tax differences as recognized by Spirit Holdings in the post-Boeing
Acquisition period in 2005 were applied to the pre-Boeing Acquisition period in 2005 and (2) 100% of the actual
valuation allowance recorded on net deferred tax assets utilized by Spirit in the post-Boeing Acquisition period in
2005 was assumed to be consistent with valuation allowance on net deferred tax assets for the pre-Boeing
Acquisition period in 2005.

(IIT) Labor Costs

New union wage rates took effect upon, and pension, health and welfare benefits, post-retirement and incentive
plans were adjusted as a result of, the Boeing Acquisition. The historical costs incurred have been adjusted by
$11.6 million as a result of wage changes and $19.8 million as a result of fringe rate changes. The wage reduction
adjustment was calculated using the average number of union employees as of each of January 1, 2005 and
June 16, 2005 and the difference between the actual wage rates in effect as of each of January 1, 2005 and June 30,
2005.

Actual fringe rates as a percentage of labor incurred by us for the period from June 17, 2005 through
December 29, 2005 were applied to the lower base labor cost to calculate the fringe rate adjustment.
44
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND OTHER DATA

The following table sets forth our selected consolidated financial data for each of the periods indicated. The
periods prior to and including June 16, 2005 reflect data of our Predecessor for financial accounting purposes. The
periods beginning June 17, 2005 reflect our financial data after the Boeing Acquisition. Financial data for the year
ended December 31, 2001 (Predecessor), the year ended December 31, 2002 (Predecessor), the year ended
December 31, 2003 (Predecessor), the year ended December 31, 2004 (Predecessor), the period from January 1, 2005
through June 16, 2005 (Predecessor) and the period from June 17, 2005 through December 29, 2005 (Spirit Holdings)
are derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of Predecessor or the restated audited consolidated
financial statements of Spirit Holdings, as applicable. The audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2003 (Predecessor), the year ended December 31, 2004 (Predecessor), the period from January 1, 2005
through June 16, 2005 (Predecessor) and the period from June 17, 2005 through December 29, 2005 (Spirit Holdings)
are included in this prospectus. Financial data as of and for the nine months ended September 28, 2006 (Spirit
Holdings) are derived from the unaudited consolidated financial statements of Spirit Holdings, included in this
prospectus. Interim results are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the entire fiscal year. You
should read the information presented below in conjunction with Capitalization, = Management s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and our combined and consolidated financial statements
and related notes contained elsewhere in this prospectus.

Spirit Holdings Predecessor
Period Period
from from
Nine June 17, .
Months 2005 January 1, Fiscal Year Ended
2005
Ended through through
September 2Becember 29, June 16, December 31December 31,December 31,December 31,
2006 2005(1) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

(unaudited) (restated)
(Dollars in millions)
Statement of
Income Data:

Net sales $2,3559 §$ 1,207.6 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Cost of sales $1,926.7 1,056.4 $ 1,1639 § 2,0743 $ 20639 §$§ 23507 $ 2945.0
Selling, general &

administrative

expenses(2) $ 160.0 140.7 79.7 155.1 116.7 135.1 138.1
Research &

development $ 851 78.3 11.0 18.1 17.3 18.5 21.9
Special charges(3) $ 10.3 49.0

Operating income

(loss) $ 184.1 (67.8) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Interest expense and

financing fee

amortization $ (34.8) (25.5) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Interest income $ 209 154
Other income, net $ 3.6 1.3 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
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income taxes $ 1738 (76.6) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Provision for income

taxes $ (87.6) (13.7) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Net income (loss) $ 862 $ (90.3) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Net income (loss) per

share, basic $ 076 $ (0.80) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Shares used in per

share calculation,

basic 113.9 113.5 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Net income (loss) per

share, diluted $ 071 $ (0.80) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Shares used in per

share calculation,

diluted 121.7 113.5 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Other Financial

Data:

Cash flow provided

by (used in)

operating activities $ 3257 $ 2238 $(1,177.8) $(2,164.9) $ (2,081.8) $ (2,281.8) $ (3,034.3)

Cash flow used in

investing activities $ (365.7) $ (1,0303) $ (482) $ (544) $ 43.3) $ (504) $ (61.3)

Cash flow provided

by (used in)

financing activities $ (125 $ 1,047.8 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Capital expenditures $ (233.4) $ (1446) $ (482) $ (544) $ 43.3) $ (504) $ (61.3)
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Spirit Holdings
Predecessor
As of
Nine
Months As of
Ended
September 28.December 29, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2006 2005(1) 2004 2003 2002 2001
(restated)
(Dollars in millions)
Consolidated Balance
Sheet Data:
Cash & cash
equivalents(4) $ 1890 $ 241.3 $ 30 % 3.6 $ 1.3 $ 1.7
Accounts receivable,net $ 2157 $ 98.8 $ 20 $ 2.0 $ 1.6 $ 1.6
Inventories $ 7317 $ 5107 $ 5246 $ 5294 $ 5351 $ 683.9
Property, plant &
equipment, net $ 7167 $ 5188 $ 5110 $ 5553 $ 611.8 $  667.1
Total assets $ 23354 $ 1,656.6 $1,0436 $ 1,0933 $ 1,153.1 $ 1,358.1
Total debt $ 7225 % 721.6 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Long-term debt $ 6993 § 7100 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Shareholders equity $ 4711 $ 3258 N/A N/A N/A N/A

(1) See Note 2 of the restated consolidated financial statements for further information regarding the restatement.

(2) Includes non-cash stock compensation expenses of $40.8 million, $34.7 million, $22.1 million, $23.3 million,
$12.9 million, $9.1 million and $7.2 million for the respective periods starting with the nine months ended
September 28, 2006.

(3) In 2001, a special charge was allocable to Boeing Wichita in connection with the terrorist attacks of
September 11, 2001. In 2003, a charge was allocable to Boeing Wichita in connection with the close-out of the
Boeing B757 program.

(4) Prior to the Boeing Acquisition, the Predecessor was part of Boeing s cash management system, and
consequently, had no separate cash balance. Therefore, at December 31, 2004, December 31, 2003, December 31,
2002 and December 31, 2001, the Predecessor had negligible cash on the balance sheet.
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MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations in conjunction with
the audited restated consolidated financial statements, the notes to the audited restated consolidated financial
statements and the Selected Consolidated Financial Information and Other Data appearing elsewhere in this
prospectus. This discussion covers periods before and after the closing of the Boeing Acquisition. The discussion and
analysis of historical periods prior to the Boeing Acquisition do not reflect the impact of the Boeing Acquisition. In
addition, this discussion contains forward-looking statements that must be understood in the context of numerous risks
and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, those described in the Risk Factors section of this prospectus. See

Cautionary Statements Regarding Forward-Looking Statements. Our results may differ materially from those

anticipated in any forward-looking statements.
Restatement

In conjunction with this offering, we and our board of directors reassessed the fair market values ascribed for
financial accounting purposes to common stock purchased by management as well as restricted stock awards issued to
employees under our Executive Incentive, Short Term Incentive and Long Term Incentive Plans and to directors under
our Director Stock Plan in fiscal 2005 and through June 29, 2006. We adjusted the fair values ascribed to these equity
awards for financial accounting purposes to the fair value of our underlying equity using appraisals and valuations of
the underlying net assets and other data necessary to reasonably estimate such value on a per share basis at the various
grant dates. We then calculated additional stock compensation expense necessary to be recognized in accordance with
SFAS No. 123(R) as a result of this change in valuation. Accordingly, we have restated our financial statements as of
June 29, 2006 and December 29, 2005 and for the periods then ended to reflect the additional stock compensation
expense and related tax impact had these equity awards been recorded at their currently estimated fair values. We also
recorded the entries that had previously remained as unadjusted differences at December 29, 2005 resulting in a
discrete non-cash charge to pre-tax earnings of $0.8 million for the period from inception (February 7, 2005) through
December 29, 2005 and a non-cash increase to pre-tax earnings of $1.2 million for the six-month period ending
June 29, 2006. The fair market value reassessment portion of the restatement resulted in an additional non-cash charge
to Selling, general and administrative expense of $30.5 million, and a corresponding increase in Net loss of
$30.5 million for the period from inception (February 7, 2005) through December 29, 2005 and an additional non-cash
charge to Selling, general and administrative expense of $19.0 million, an increase in Provision for income taxes of
$5.0 million and a reduction of Net income by $24.0 million for the six-month period ending June 29, 2006.
Additional information regarding the effect of the restatement to reflect these changes is included in Note 2 to our
restated consolidated financial statements included in this prospectus.

The following table presents the estimated effect of the change in valuation on stock compensation expense by
year both historically and for future periods for awards issued prior to June 29, 2006:

Period Period
from from
June 17, Period June 30,
2005 from 2006
through December 30, through For the years ending December 31,
December 29, 2005 December 31,
through
2005 J“Z‘:)‘“’O?’ 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Total
As previously
reported(1) $ 42 $ 73  $ 71 $ 41 $ 25 $13 $04 S $ 269
As restated 347 26.3 28.0 25.5 14.6 8.0 2.9 0.2 140.2
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(1) For the periods ending after June 29, 2006, the presented figures represent the estimated future spread of the
original calculated fair values. The values presented for the period from June 17, 2005 through December 29,
2005 and the period from December 30, 2005 through June 29, 2006 are the amounts that were previously
presented in the statements of cash flows.
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Overview

We are the largest independent non-OEM designer and manufacturer of aerostructures in the world. Aerostructures
are structural components, such as fuselages, propulsion systems and wing systems for commercial, military and
business jet aircraft. We derive our revenues primarily through long-term supply agreements with Boeing and Airbus.
For the nine months ended September 28, 2006, we generated net revenues of approximately $2,356 million and net
income of approximately $86 million. For the three months ended September 28, 2006, we generated revenues of
approximately $830 million and net income of approximately $34 million.

We are organized into three principal reporting segments: (1) Fuselage Systems, which include the forward,
mid-and rear fuselage sections, (2) Propulsion Systems, which include nacelles, struts/pylons and engine structural
components and (3) Wing Systems, which include wings, wing components and flight control surfaces. All other
activities fall within the All Other segment, principally made up of sundry sales of miscellaneous services and sales of
natural gas through a tenancy-in-common with other Wichita companies. Fuselage Systems, Propulsion Systems,
Wing Systems and All Other represented approximately 49%, 27%, 23% and 1%, respectively, of our revenues for the
quarter ended September 28, 2006.

Market Trends

The financial health of the commercial airline industry has a direct and significant effect on our commercial
aircraft programs. The commercial airline industry is impacted by the strength of the global economy and geo-political
events around the world. The commercial airline industry suffered after the terrorist attacks of September 11, 2001
and the subsequent downturn in the global economy, the SARS epidemic in 2002 and, more recently, from rising fuel
prices and the conflicts in the Middle East. In the last two years, the industry has shown signs of strengthening with
increases in global revenue passenger miles (RPMs) driven in large part by deregulation and economic growth in Asia
and the Middle East, although rising fuel prices, conflicts in the Middle East, major U.S. airline financial distress and
the risk of additional terrorist activity have tempered the recovery.

Both Boeing and Airbus experienced record airplane orders in 2005. As reported by Boeing and Airbus as of
September 30, 2006, they had a combined backlog of 4,294 commercial aircraft, which has grown from a backlog of
3,968 as of December 31, 2005. The current backlog represents approximately 5.2 years of production at expected
2006 delivery rates. Many industry experts believe that the strength of commercial orders will continue through the
next several years, though they are not expected to approach the 2005 record levels. As a result, Boeing and Airbus
have announced increased production rates, including on the B737, B777 and A320 models, on which we have
significant work content. The following table sets forth the historical deliveries of Boeing and Airbus and their
announced delivery expectations for 2006.

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Boeing 527 381 281 285 290 395
Airbus 325 303 305 320 378 430
Total 852 684 586 605 668 825

Boeing s deliveries decreased by approximately 28% in 2002 and by approximately another 26% in 2003. Boeing s
deliveries rose slightly in each of 2004 and 2005 and are expected to rise by approximately 36% in 2006. Airbus
experienced more stable delivery rates from 2001 through 2004. Airbus deliveries then rose by approximately 18% in
2005 and are expected to rise by approximately another 14% in 2006. Total deliveries for Boeing and Airbus
decreased by approximately 20% and 14% in 2002 and 2003, respectively. Total deliveries increased by
approximately 3% and 10% in 2004 and 2005, respectively, and are expected to grow by approximately an additional
24% in 2006.

Although the commercial aerospace industry is in a cycle of increased production, our business could be adversely
affected by significant changes in the U.S. or global economy. Historically, aircraft travel, as measured by global
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could result in a decrease in new orders, or even cancellation of existing orders, for new or replacement aircraft, which
in turn could adversely affect our business. Part of our strategy during this upturn is to work on diversifying our
customer base and reducing our fixed to variable cost ratio so we have downside protection in this cyclical market.

In recent years, Boeing has announced the possibility of terminating its B767 program. Although B767 orders and
backlog increased in 2005, Boeing could terminate the B767 program unless commercial airlines order additional
aircraft in sufficient quantities to justify continued production or the U.S. Air Force launches a tanker program using
the B767 as a platform. Boeing has announced that it is reasonably possible that a decision to end production of the
B767 program could be made in 2007. Although we cannot predict the likelihood of Boeing terminating production of
the B767 program, we do not believe that termination of the B767 program would have a material impact on our
results of operations, balance sheet or cash flows as it does not comprise a significant portion of our business.

The Boeing Acquisition and Related Transactions

In December 2004 and February 2005, an investor group led by Onex Partners LP and Onex Corporation formed
the companies of Spirit and Spirit Holdings, respectively, for the purpose of acquiring Boeing Wichita. On June 16,
2005, Spirit acquired Boeing Wichita for a cash purchase price of approximately $904 million and the assumption of
certain liabilities, pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement. Based on final working capital and other factors
specified in the Asset Purchase Agreement, a purchase price adjustment of $19 million was paid to Spirit in the fourth
quarter of 2005. The acquisition was financed through borrowings of a $700 million Term Loan B under our Senior
Secured Credit Facilities and an equity investment of $375 million. Proceeds from the Term Loan B were used to
consummate the Boeing Acquisition and pay fees and expenses incurred in connection therewith and for working
capital. Our senior secured credit facilities also include a $175 million revolving credit facility, none of which was
borrowed at the closing date of the Boeing Acquisition and $0.3 million of which is outstanding in the form of letters
of credit as of September 28, 2006. In connection with the Boeing Acquisition, Boeing is required to make future
payments to Spirit in amounts of $45.5 million, $116.1 million and $115.4 million in 2007, 2008 and 2009,
respectively, in payment for various tooling and capital assets built or purchased by Spirit. Spirit will retain
unimpeded usage rights and custody of these assets for their remaining useful lives without compensation to Boeing.
Boeing also contributed $30 million to us to partially offset our costs to transition to a stand alone company. The fair
value of the various assets acquired and liabilities assumed were determined by management based on valuations
performed by an independent third party. The fair value of the net assets acquired exceeded the total consideration for
the acquisition by approximately $739.1 million. The excess (negative goodwill) was allocated on a pro rata basis to
long-lived assets.

In connection with the Boeing Acquisition, we entered into a long-term supply agreement under which we are
Boeing s exclusive supplier for substantially all of the products and services that Boeing Wichita provided to Boeing
prior to the Boeing Acquisition. The supply contract is a requirements contract covering certain products such as
fuselages, struts, wing components and nacelles for Boeing B737, B747, B767 and B777 commercial aircraft
programs for the life of these programs, including any commercial derivative models. Pricing for existing products is
contractually set through May 2013, with average prices decreasing at higher volume levels and increasing at lower
volume levels. We also entered into a long-term supply agreement for Boeing s new B787 platform covering the life of
this platform, including commercial derivatives. Under this contract, we will be Boeing s exclusive supplier for the
forward fuselage, fixed and moveable leading wing edges and struts for the B787. Pricing for these products on the
B787-8 model is generally set through 2021, with prices decreasing as cumulative production volume levels are
achieved over time.

Cost Savings

In connection with and since the Boeing Acquisition, Spirit was able to achieve substantial cost reductions by
renegotiating labor contracts, reducing pension and fringe benefit costs and utilizing strategic sourcing to lower the
cost of procuring raw materials and certain internal processes. Below are
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management s estimates of the average annual cost savings resulting from these agreements negotiated following the
Boeing Acquisition.

Direct Labor. We implemented two significant cost reduction initiatives in conjunction with the Boeing
Acquisition that lowered our direct labor costs. We hired 1,300 fewer people than the predecessor had employed,
which translates into approximately $112 million of annual savings. Pursuant to the terms of the Asset Purchase
Agreement, we did not incur severance obligations to former Boeing employees that we did not hire. We were able to
operate with fewer people due to higher productivity among our remaining employees, favorable contract terms, new
work rules and realignment of business units. Additionally, new union contracts provided for wage reductions of 10%,
on average, for our direct labor force. Since the Boeing Acquisition, new employees required to support increasing
production levels have been hired at lower starting wage rates. The new union contracts and changing mix of pre- and
post-Boeing Acquisition employees have resulted in approximately $65 million in annual cost savings, assuming a
constant level of employees. The new union agreements provide for an escalation of labor costs by approximately
$20 million per year, assuming a constant level of employees.

Pension and Other Benefits (Fringe). Cost reduction initiatives related to the Boeing Acquisition have also
lowered our pension and other benefits (fringe) costs. We were able to achieve substantial cost reductions by
switching employee retirement plans from defined benefit plans to defined contribution plans and raising the required
employee medical plan contribution percentage. The resulting cost savings lowered our fringe rate as a percentage of
labor by five percentage points, which translates into approximately $27 million of annual savings, assuming a
constant level of employees. Subsequently, as of January 2006, we recognized further fringe benefits reductions based
on the results of our first six months of operations, lowering our fringe rate as a percentage of labor by a further
10 percentage points, or approximately $59 million, on an annual basis. The major contributors to this reduction were
lower negotiated medical premiums from third party providers as a result of experience and plan redesign, hiring of
Boeing retirees who are covered under Boeing s retiree medical plan, lower paid time off due to changing seniority
levels, as described above, further pension/retirement reductions and improved workers compensation claims
experience.

As a result of the adjustments recorded in June 2006 to reflect the final pension asset transfer discussed in Note 3
within the notes to our restated consolidated financial statements under the heading Acquisition of Spirit, we expect to
realize additional annual savings of approximately $30 million in the form of higher pension income and lower
depreciation and amortization expense.

As a result of the revaluation of the fair values ascribed to common stock purchased by and granted to
management and others, we have recognized incremental non-cash stock compensation charges of $30.5 million and
$19.0 million for the period from inception (February 7, 2005) through December 29, 2005 and the six month period
ending June 29, 2006, respectively. See Note 2 to our restated consolidated financial statements for additional details.

Strategic Sourcing. In addition to cost reduction initiatives implemented in connection with the Boeing
Acquisition, strategic sourcing has created additional average annual savings of approximately $23 million over the
current estimated production quantity. These savings are comprised of approximately $7 million from lower cost
structures associated with services that were provided by Boeing such as housekeeping and security and $16 million
of direct material savings.

Union Equity Participation Plan Compensation Expense

We have established a Union Equity Participation Plan pursuant to which we will issue stock appreciation rights

tied to the value of our class B common stock for the benefit of certain of our union-represented employees. See
Business Employees. Upon the consummation of this offering, based on an assumed initial public offering price of

$24.00 per share, the midpoint of the range on the cover of this prospectus, the stock appreciation rights will entitle

the employees to receive a total of approximately $270.2 million, in cash and/or shares of class A common stock at

our discretion, resulting in a compensation expense to us of $270.2 million in the period in which this offering is

consummated.
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Recent Events

Acquisition of BAE Aerostructures. On April 1, 2006, through our wholly-owned subsidiary, Spirit Europe, we
acquired BAE Aerostructures for a cash purchase price of approximately $145.7 million and the assumption of certain
normal course liabilities (including accounts payable of approximately $57.8 million). Spirit Europe manufactures
leading and trailing wing edges and other wing components for commercial aircraft programs for Airbus and Boeing
and produces various aerostructure components for certain Raytheon business jets. The BAE Acquisition provides us
with a foundation to increase future sales to Airbus, as Spirit Europe is a key supplier of wing and flight control
surfaces for the A320 platform, Airbus core single aisle program, and of wing components for the A380 platform, one
of Airbus most important new programs and the world s largest commercial passenger aircraft. Under our supply
agreements with Airbus, we supply most of our products for the life of the aircraft program, including commercial
derivative models, with pricing determined through 2010. For the A380, we have a long-term supply contract with
Airbus that covers a fixed number of units.

Boeing Strike. On September 2, 2005, Boeing experienced a strike during collective bargaining discussions with
the International Association of Machinists and Aerospace Workers, or the IAM. At the onset of the strike, Boeing
implemented a ship-in-place plan for all Spirit-produced major components. During the ship-in-place period, we
continued production at a reduced rate, but did not physically deliver any products to Boeing, other than
miscellaneous spares and small components. We recognized revenue on these ship-in-place units consistent with
contractual terms. During this time period, we worked with our employees to reduce work weeks instead of
implementing layoffs and furloughs. After Boeing reached a three-year agreement with the IAM on September 29,
2005, Spirit and Boeing worked together to return production to normal rates by January 2006. The reduced
production rates during and for a period of time after the strike reduced Spirit s revenue by an estimated $172 million
for the six and one-half months ended December 29, 2005 and negatively impacted our revenue, income and cash
flows for the first quarter of 2006.

Basis of Presentation

Since the Boeing Acquisition was effective on June 17, 2005, the financial statements and subsidiary detail for
prior periods relate to its predecessor, the Wichita Division of BCA, which we refer to as Boeing Wichita or the
Predecessor, and are presented on a carve-out basis. As a result, we believe that these financial statements for the
Predecessor are not comparable to the financial statements for Spirit Holdings for periods following the Boeing
Acquisition, as described under the heading  Pre-Boeing Acquisition Results are Not Comparable to Post-Boeing
Acquisition Results.

Prior to the Boeing Acquisition. Prior to the completion of the Boeing Acquisition, the Predecessor was a division
of Boeing and was not a separate legal entity. Historically, the Predecessor functioned as an internal supplier of parts
and assemblies to Boeing aircraft programs and had very few sales to third parties. It operated as a cost center within
Boeing, meaning that it recognized its cost of products manufactured for BCA programs, but did not recognize any
corresponding revenues for those products. No intra-company pricing was established for the parts and assemblies that
the Predecessor supplied to Boeing. Revenues from sales to third parties were insignificant, consisting of less than
$100,000 in each year from 2001 through 2004, and in the period from January 1, 2005 through the closing date of the
Boeing Acquisition. As a cost center, the division operated under intra-company arrangements with Boeing, with all
transactions with Boeing conducted on a non-cash basis. The Predecessor accumulated incurred costs and assigned a
per-finished item value to the airplane programs as completed items were delivered to Boeing s Puget Sound facilities
for final assembly.

Certain amounts included in the Predecessor s financial statements have been allocated from BCA and/or Boeing.
Spirit believes that these allocations are reasonable, but not necessarily indicative of costs that would have been
incurred by Boeing Wichita had it operated as a stand alone business for the same periods.
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Statements of cash flows have not been presented for the Predecessor because it did not maintain cash accounts
and participated in Boeing s centralized cash management systems and Boeing funded all of its cash requirements.

The Predecessor s financial statements include both the Wichita and Tulsa/ McAlester sites. All intercompany
balances and transactions involving the consolidating entities have been eliminated in consolidation.

Post Boeing Acquisition. Since the Boeing Acquisition, Spirit has operated as a stand alone entity with its own
accounting records. The restated consolidated financial statements include Spirit Holdings, Spirit and its other
subsidiaries in accordance with Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, SFAS No. 94 and Financial Accounting
Standards Board, or FASB, Interpretation No. 46(R). All intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Critical Accounting Policies

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon our
restated consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The preparation
of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we
evaluate our estimates, including those related to inventories, income taxes, financing obligations, warranties,
pensions and other postretirement benefits and contingencies and litigation. We base our estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Management believes that the quality and reasonableness of our most critical policies
enable the fair presentation of our financial position and results of operations. However, we caution you that the
sensitivity of financial statements to these methods, assumptions and estimates could create materially different results
under different conditions or using different assumptions.

The following are the most critical accounting policies of Spirit Holdings, which are those that require
management s most subjective and complex judgments, requiring the use of estimates about the effect of matters that
are inherently uncertain and may change in subsequent periods.

Revenue and Profit Recognition

A significant portion of Spirit s revenues are recognized under long-term, volume-based pricing contracts,
requiring delivery of products over several years. Spirit recognizes revenue under the contract method of accounting
and records sales and profits on each contract in accordance with the percentage-of-completion method of accounting,
using the units of delivery method. We follow the requirements of Statement of Position 81-1 (SOP 81-1), Accounting
for Performance of Construction-Type and Certain Production-Type Contracts (the contract method of accounting),
using the cumulative catch-up method in accounting for revisions in estimates. Under the cumulative catch-up
method, the impact of revisions in estimates is recognized immediately when changes in estimated contract
profitability become known.

A profit rate is estimated based on the difference between total revenues and total costs of a contract. Total
revenues at any given time include actual historical revenues up to that time plus future estimated revenues. Total
costs at any given time include actual historical costs up to that time plus future estimated costs. Estimated revenues
include negotiated or expected values for units delivered, estimates of probable recoveries asserted against the
customer for changes in specifications, price adjustments for contract and volume changes, and escalation. Costs
include the estimated cost of certain pre-production effort (including nonrecurring engineering and planning
subsequent to completion of final design) plus the estimated cost of manufacturing a specified number of production
units. Estimates take into account assumptions relative to future labor performance and rates, and projections relative
to material and overhead costs including expected learning curve cost reductions over the term of the contract. The
specified number of production units used to establish the profit margin is predicated upon contractual
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terms and market forecasts, and for Boeing contracts, is closely aligned with Boeing s disclosed accounting quantities.
The assumed timeframe/period is generally equal to the period specified in the contract. If the contractis a life of
program contract, then such period is equal to the time period covered by the estimated number of production units.
Estimated revenues and costs also take into account the expected impact of specific contingencies that we believe are
probable.

Estimates of revenue and cost for our contracts span a period of multiple years and are based on a substantial
number of underlying assumptions. We believe that the underlying assumptions are sufficiently reliable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the profit to be generated. However, due to the significant length of time over which revenue
streams will be generated, the variability of the revenue and cost streams can be significant if the assumptions change.

For revenues not recognized under the contract method of accounting, we recognize revenues from the sale of
products at the point of passage of title, which is generally at the time of shipment. Revenues earned from providing
maintenance service are recognized when the service is complete.

For hardware end items, the Predecessor recognized transferred costs when the item was due on dock at Boeing s
major assembly facility. Costs of products manufactured at the Predecessor s Wichita site were valued at discrete unit
cost, while costs of products manufactured at its Tulsa/ McAlester facility were valued based on the estimated average
cost for a Boeing-defined block of units. The cost of other work (services, tooling, etc.) was measured at actual cost as
the costs were incurred by the Predecessor.

We treat the Boeing-owned tooling that we use in the performance of our supply agreements with Boeing as
having been obtained in the Boeing Acquisition pursuant to the equivalent of a capital lease and we take a charge
against revenues for the amortization of such tooling in accordance with EITF No. 01-3, Accounting in a Business
Combination for Deferred Revenue of an Acquiree and EITF No. 01-9, Accounting for Consideration Given by a
Vendor to a Customer (including a Reseller of the Vendor s Products).

Inventory

Raw materials are stated at the lower of cost (on an actual or average cost basis) or market which is consistent with
the Predecessor s valuation of raw materials. Inventory costs relating to long-term contracts are stated at the actual
production costs, including manufacturing and engineering overhead incurred to date, reduced by amounts associated
with revenue recognized on units delivered.

Inventory costs on long-term contracts include certain pre-production costs incurred once research and
development activity has ended and the product is ready for manufacture, including applicable overhead, in
accordance with SOP 81-1. In addition, inventory costs typically include higher learning curve costs on new
programs. These factors usually result in an increase in inventory (referred to as excess-over-average or deferred
production costs ) during the early years of a contract. These costs are deferred only to the extent the amount of actual
or expected excess-over-average is reasonably expected to be fully offset by lower than average costs in future periods
of a contract.

If we determine that in-process inventory plus estimated costs to complete a specific contract exceeds the
anticipated remaining sales value of such contract, such excess is charged to cost of sales in the period in which such
determination is made, thus reducing inventory to estimated realizable value.

Finished goods inventory is stated at its estimated average per unit cost based on all units expected to be produced.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 109. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for future income tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. A valuation allowance is recorded to reduce
deferred income tax assets to an amount that, in the opinion of management, will ultimately be realized. The effect of
changes in tax rates is recognized during the period in which the rate change occurs.
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We record an income tax expense or benefit based on the net income earned or net loss incurred in each tax
jurisdiction and the tax rate applicable to that income or loss. In the ordinary course of business, there are transactions
for which the ultimate tax outcome is uncertain. The final tax outcome of these matters may be different than the
estimates originally made by management in determining the income tax provision. A change to these estimates could
impact the effective tax rate and, subsequently, net income or net loss.

The Predecessor had no income taxes identified or allocated to it (all income taxes were held at the Boeing
corporate level).

Pensions and Other Post-Retirement Benefits

We account for pensions and other post-retirement benefits in accordance with SFAS No. 87, Employers
Accounting for Pensions and SFAS No. 106, Employers Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions.
Assumptions used in determining the benefit obligations and the annual expense for our pension and post-retirement
benefits other than pensions are evaluated and established in conjunction with an independent actuary.

We set the discount rate assumption annually for each of our retirement-related benefit plans as of the
measurement date, based on a review of projected cash flows and long-term high quality corporate bond yield curves.
The discount rate determined on each measurement date is used to calculate the benefit obligation as of that date, and
is also used to calculate the net periodic benefit expense/(income) for the upcoming plan year.

We derive assumed expected rate of return on pension assets from the long-term expected returns based on the
investment allocation by class specified in our investment policy. The expected return on plan assets determined on
each measurement date is used to calculate the net periodic benefit expense/ (income) for the upcoming plan year.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the post-retirement
health care plans. To determine the health care cost trend rates, we consider national health trends and adjust for our
specific plan designs and locations.

The Predecessor participated in various pension and post-retirement plans sponsored by Boeing which covered
substantially all of its employees. The costs of such plans were not discretely identifiable to the Predecessor but were
allocated by Boeing to the Predecessor and included in the cost of products transferred. The assets and obligations
under these plans were also not discretely identified to the Predecessor.

Stock Compensation Plans

Upon inception we adopted SFAS No. 123(R) which generally requires companies to measure the cost of
employee and non-employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant-date
fair value and to recognize this cost over the requisite service period or immediately if there is no service period or
other performance requirements. Stock-based compensation represents a significant accounting policy of ours which
is further described in Note 3 within the notes to our restated consolidated financial statements included in this
prospectus.

We have established various stock compensation plans which include restricted share grants and stock purchase
plans.

In determining the fair value of our restricted stock grants, for purposes of determining the corresponding
compensation expense recorded in our financial statements, we originally relied on the $3.33 per common share
equity financing for the Boeing Acquisition for those grants that occurred within 60 days following the transaction.
For grants made or earned later in 2005, we did not obtain contemporaneous valuations by an unrelated valuation
specialist, but instead relied on an internal valuation as of December 29, 2005. This internal valuation was prepared by
management using the mid-point of two current value methodologies the market and income valuation approaches.
We initially estimated the
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fair value of our common stock to be approximately $7.67 per common share (stock split adjusted) at December 29,
2005. We also initially used this valuation for stock issuances made in February 2006. During the course of preparing
our financial statements for this offering, we adjusted the fair values of the stock purchases by employees and the
restricted stock grants issued to our employees and directors and recorded the corresponding compensation expense.
Using appraisals and valuations of the underlying net assets and other data necessary to reasonably estimate such
value, we calculated a range of $9.72 to $21.62 per common share (stock split adjusted) for those grants that occurred
between June 17, 2005 and July 31, 2006. As a result of these new valuations, the Selling, general and administrative
expense for the period from June 17, 2005 through December 29, 2005 was increased by $30.5 million to
$34.7 million. For the first nine months of 2006, the Company recognized a total of $40.8 million of stock
compensation expense. See Note 2 to our restated consolidated financial statements. There were 316,188 shares
granted under the Executive Incentive Plan during the third quarter of 2006 at an average grant value of $21.56 per
common share.
Purchase Accounting

Boeing Acquisition. We have accounted for the Boeing Acquisition as a purchase in accordance with
SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, and recorded the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based upon the
estimated fair value of the consideration paid, which is summarized in the following table.

(Dollars in millions)

Cash payment to Boeing $ 904
Direct costs of the acquisition 20
Less:
Consideration to be returned from Boeing for sale of capital assets (203)
Consideration to be returned from Boeing for transition costs 30)
Working capital settlement (19)
Total consideration $ 672

Direct costs of the acquisition include professional fees paid to outside advisors for investment banking, legal, tax,
due diligence, appraisal and valuation services.

In connection with the Boeing Acquisition, Boeing is required to make future non-interest bearing payments to
Spirit in amounts of $45.5 million, $116.1 million and $115.4 million in 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively, in
payment for various tooling and capital assets built or purchased by Spirit. Spirit will retain usage rights and custody
of the assets for their remaining useful lives without compensation to Boeing. Since Spirit retains the risks and
rewards of ownership to such assets, Spirit recorded such amounts as consideration to be returned from Boeing at a
net present value of approximately $203.0 million. The initial amount will be accreted as interest income until
payments occur and is recorded as a component of other assets. The accretion of interest income was approximately
$15.3 million and approximately $9.7 million in the first nine months of 2006 and in fiscal 2005, respectively.

In connection with the Boeing Acquisition, Boeing also made payments to us totaling $30 million through June
2006 for Spirit s costs of transition to a newly formed enterprise. Since Spirit had no obligations under this
arrangement, such amounts were recorded as consideration to be returned from Boeing. These payments were not
discounted as they were realized within one year of closing.

In accordance with the Asset Purchase Agreement, in fiscal 2005, Boeing reimbursed Spirit approximately
$19 million for the contractually determined working capital settlement.
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The fair value of the various assets acquired and liabilities assumed were determined by management. The fair
value of the net assets acquired exceeded the total consideration for the acquisition by approximately $739.1 million.
The excess (negative goodwill) was allocated on a pro rata basis to long-lived assets and resulted in the purchase
allocation noted below:

Details of the purchase price allocation are as follows:

Fair value Pro rata allocation Book value,
June 16, of excess of fair June 16,
2005 value over cost 2005

(Dollars in millions)

Cash $ 1.3 $ 1.3
Accounts receivable 0.3 0.3
Inventories 479.2 479.2
Other current assets 0.3 0.3
Property, plant and equipment 902.3 $ (671.2) 231.1
Intangible assets 85.2 (67.9) 17.3
Other assets 6.8 6.8
Pension asset 101.2 101.2
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (130.2) (130.2)
Pension and post-retirement liabilities (35.0) (35.0)
Net assets acquired $ 14114 $ (739.1) $ 672.3

BAE Acquisition. We accounted for the BAE Acquisition as a purchase in accordance with the provisions of
SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, and recorded the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based upon the fair
value of the consideration paid, which is summarized in the following table:

Cash payment to BAE Systems $ 139.1
Direct costs of the acquisition 3.6
Working capital settlement 3.0
Total consideration $ 145.7

Direct costs of the acquisition are estimated, and include professional fees paid to outside advisors for investment
banking, legal, tax, due diligence, appraisal and valuation services. The above purchase price will be adjusted as direct
costs of the acquisition are finalized.
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The fair value of the various assets acquired and liabilities assumed was determined by management based on
valuations performed by an independent third party. The fair value of the net assets acquired exceeded the total
consideration for the acquisition by approximately $22.4 million. The excess (negative goodwill) was allocated on a
pro rata basis to long-lived assets and resulted in the preliminary purchase price allocation as follows:

Pro rata
Allocation of
Excess of
Fair Value Fair Value Book Value
April 1, April 1,
5006 Over Cost 5006

Cash $ 0.3 $ $ 0.3
Accounts receivable 61.3 61.3
Inventories 45.7 45.7
Other current assets
Property, plant and equipment 90.3 (15.4) 74.9
Intangible assets (customer relationships) 40.8 (7.0) 33.8
Currency hedge assets 11.1 11.1
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (57.8) (57.8)
Pension liabilities (19.1) (19.1)
Warranty liabilities (2.8) (2.8)
Currency hedge liabilities (1.7) (1.7)
Net assets acquired $ 168.1 $ 224) % 145.7

We expect to finalize the purchase price allocation for Spirit Europe prior to December 31, 2006 and do not expect
significant adjustments to the preliminary allocation noted above.
New Accounting Standards

In May 2005, FASB issued SFAS No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections a Replacement of APB
Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3, effective for accounting changes and correction of errors made in fiscal
years ending after December 15, 2005. SFAS No. 154 requires retrospective application of changes in accounting
principles to prior period financial statements, unless it is impractical to determine the period-specific effects of the
cumulative effect of the change. We do not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 154 to have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

In February 2006, FASB issued SFAS No. 155, Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments, which
amends SFAS No. 133 and SFAS No. 140, and improves the financial reporting of certain hybrid financial
instruments by requiring more consistent accounting that eliminates exemptions and simplifies the accounting for
those instruments. SFAS No. 155 allows financial instruments that have embedded derivatives to be accounted for as a
whole (eliminating the need to bifurcate the derivative from its host) if the holder elects to account for the whole
instrument on a fair value basis. SFAS No. 155 is effective for all financial instruments acquired or issued after the
beginning of an entity s first fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006. We have not issued or acquired the
hybrid instruments included in the scope of SFAS No. 155 and do not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 155 to have a
material impact on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

In March 2006, FASB issued SFAS No. 156, Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets —an amendment of
FASB Statement No. 140. SFAS No. 156 requires that all separately recognized servicing assets and servicing
liabilities be initially measured at fair value, if practicable. The statement permits, but does not require, the subsequent
measurement of servicing assets and servicing liabilities at fair value. SFAS No. 156 is effective as of the beginning of
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In June 2006, FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, or FIN 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006.
FIN 48 prescribes the minimum recognition threshold a tax position must meet before being recognized in the
financial statements and provides guidance on derecognition, measurement, classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. The Company is reviewing the effect of the adoption of
FIN 48 and we have yet to determine the impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and requires enhanced disclosures about fair value measurements.
SFAS No. 157 requires companies to disclose the fair value of their financial instruments according to a fair value
hierarchy as defined in the standard. Additionally, companies are required to provide enhanced disclosure regarding
financial instruments in one of the categories (level 3), including a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances
separately for each major category of assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued
for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. We believe that the
adoption of SFAS No. 157 will not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

On September 29, 2006, FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Post Retirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 123(R). The standard will
require us to:

Recognize the funded status of our defined benefit plans in our consolidated financial statements.

Recognize as a component of other compensation income any actuarial gains and losses and prior service costs
and credits that arise during the period but are not immediately recognized as components of net periodic benefit
cost.

Measure defined benefit plan assets and obligations as of our fiscal year end.

Disclose in the notes to the financial statements additional information about certain effects on net periodic cost
for the subsequent fiscal year that arise from delayed recognition of gains or losses, prior to service costs or
credits, and transition asset or obligation.
The standard is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2006. We are evaluating the impact to our
liabilities for pension and post retirement benefits and other comprehensive income (loss).
Accounting Changes and Pronouncements
Following the Boeing Acquisition, we adopted a number of accounting policies, practices and conventions that
differ from the Predecessor, including but not limited to the following:
change from discrete unit or block costing to the use of long-term contract accounting;

reclassification of certain costs from cost of sales to selling, general and administrative costs, or SG&A;

change from accelerated depreciation methods for most personal property to straight line depreciation methods
for all property, plant and equipment;

implementation of accounting for new activities that were not performed by or otherwise recognized by the
Predecessor; and

establishment of a lower dollar threshold for capitalization of internal use software.

Other than the above changes associated with the transition of Boeing Wichita to a stand alone business, there
have been no significant changes in our critical accounting policies during the periods presented. Announced new
SFAS or other pronouncements with effective dates subsequent to the periods presented are not expected to materially
impact us.
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Following the Boeing Acquisition, our first quarterly period ended on the last Thursday of September and our
fiscal year on the last Thursday of December. Beginning in 2006, our fiscal year will end on December 31.

Results of Operations

The Predecessor s results were driven primarily by Boeing s commercial airplane demand and the resulting
production volume. A shipset is a full set of components produced by us for one airplane, and may include fuselage
components, wing systems and propulsion systems. For purposes of measuring production or deliveries for Boeing
aircraft in a given period, the term shipset refers to sets of structural fuselage components produced or delivered in
such period. For purposes of measuring production or deliveries for Airbus aircraft in a given period, the term shipset
refers to sets of wing components produced or delivered in such period. Other components which are part of the same
aircraft shipsets could be produced or shipped in earlier or later accounting periods than the components used to
measure production or deliveries, which may result in slight variations in production or delivery quantities of the
various shipset components in any given period.

In 2003, the Predecessor produced 255 shipsets, increasing to 270 in 2004 and a combined 308 for Spirit and the
Predecessor for the entire year of 2005. Two hundred eighty-nine shipsets were delivered by Spirit in the first nine
months of 2006, as compared with 237 units delivered by Spirit and the Predecessor in the nine months ended
September 29, 2005.

Deliveries for the B737 increased from 169 shipsets in 2003 to 201 in 2004 and 233 in 2005. Two hundred
twenty-five